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Chairman’s Statement

Highlights 2002 2001 change
Turnover £179.7m £204.8m -12%
QOperating profit® £29.1m £28.1m +4%
Profit before tax, goodwill and exceptional items £25.2m £22.9m +10%
Profit before tax £20.6m £13.7m +5000
Adjusted diluted earnings per share” 24.3p 20.1p +21%
Dividend 14.75p 14.75p =
Net debt £62.8m £73.2m -14%
“{Before goodwill amortization and exceptional items)

Your company increased profits before tax, goodwill and exceptional items by 10% to
£25.2 million in the year to September 30 in spite of a 12% drop in revenues to £179.7 million.
The directors recommend a final dividend of 9.75p, making a total for the year of 14.75p, the same
as the previous year.

Adjusted diluted earnings a share increased by 21% to 24.3p, helped by a lower tax charge.
The dividend cover rose from 1.4 times to 1.6 times.

The results benefited from a series of reorganization initiatives begun during the previous year,
and from strong controis on costs, against a background of some of the worst trading conditions
in the company's history. Around two-thirds of group revenues arise from the financial sector. Its
financial publishing and training businesses were hit by cost cuts at global investment banks and
by the drop in the number of delegates travelling to attend training courses following September 1.
Advertising revenues fell by 11% across the group, and advertising in the firancial titles fell by a
fifth. The US was particularly affected, with advertising in Institutional Investor falling by 30%,
against a fall of 22% at Euromoney.

The company’s priority during the year was to remain as profitable as possible and to continue to
position the group for future growth. In spite of cutbacks by some financial institutions, ISL, the
emerging markets information service, which is subscription-based, continued to gain clients,
particularly in the public sector, and increased its revenues by 8% during the year. It made its first
monthly profit in September, and its cash flow was positive from January onwards.

A further encouraging sign for the group was & drop in debt of £10.4 million, helped by a weaker dollar,
to £62.8 million at year-end, increasing the capacity of the company to make further acquisitions.

Training revenues fell a fifth to £22.4 million. In sharp contrast, advertising into business titles
increased by 2% to £27 million, helped by the full year inclusion of Gulf Publishing acquired in
August 2001, The group's continued focus on subscription products, such as ISI, is highlighted by
the fact that subscription revenues (excluding titles closed at the beginning of the year) fell by
just 1%. Event sponsorship was the strongest revenue stream, increasing 5% to £12.9 million.

A rigorous cost reduction programme was implemented during the first half, following the closure
of certain loss-making businesses at the end of last year, the restructuring of under performing
businesses and the elimination of loss-making and low margin products. These actions
contributed savings of £2.7 million. Headcount was reduced from 1,684 at the beginning of the
year to 1,358 at the end of September, giving rise to one-off costs of nearly £1 million. Most of
this reduction in headcount was completed during the first half. Space commitments were cut and
other costs were reduced through renegotiations with suppliers.

Operating profits before goodwill increased £1 million to £29.1 million. The operating margin
improved from 13.7% to 16.2%. Profits from financial publishing fell from £20.1 million to
£13.9 million, but even in these tough conditions, titles such as Euroweek, Global Investor and
Project Finance managed to increase their profits.

Business publishing, which mainly covers the legal, energy, pharmaceutical and travel sectors,
performed relatively well, with profits increasing by 6% to £6.3 million. Both Legal Publishing
and Engel Publishing, the pharmaceutical publishing business, increased second half profits after
a difficult start to the year. Gulf Publishing contributed a profit of £200,000 after a first haif loss.
The Business Traveller group of titles recovered well from the impact of September 11 and also
increased profits.
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Chairman’s Statement continued

Training businesses are particularly sensitive to delegate numbers. Travel concerns, budget cuts
and headcount reductions badly affected course numbers at the financial and audit and IT security
training businesses, As a result, training profits fell £2.3 million to £4.4 million.

Conferences and seminars was the best performing part of the group. Profits increased
£2.4 million to £8.4 million, most of the improvement coming in the first half when the group runs
four of its five largest events including Vinisud, the biennial wine exhibition in France. Many of
the group's conferences rely on sponsorship fees rather than paying delegates. Sponsorship proved
to be a robust revenue stream, reflecting in part the quality of large annual repeat events such as
the Euromoney Bond Investors Congress, the Furomoney Global Borrowers & Investors Forum and
the Coaltrans annual coal conference, although financial conference sponsorship revenues now
show signs of weakness. In the past couple of years the company has invested in two new event
streams, business meetings and awards dinners, and both of these achieved strong revenue growth.

Databases and information services contributed a profit of £1.8 million against a loss of
£2.7 million. Most of the improvement came from ISI, which reduced its losses by £3.7 million,
but Capital Data and Capital Net also did well. The performance at i5I in the second half was much
stronger than in the first. Government agencies and corporates have been the main source of
growth, and financial customers now only account for 43% of revenues. The cost base of IS] is
relatively fixed and the infrastructure is in place to develop new revenue streams.

Group profit before tax increased from £13.7 million to £20.6 million after lower financing
charges and exceptional profits of £1.5 million following the first half receipt of the final proceeds
from the sale of the 100% Design exhibition in 1999. The previous year's results included an
exceptional charge of £3.3 million to cover the cost of closing three loss-making businesses.

There was an exceptional tax credit of £6.8 million, which arose from the release of prior year tax
provisions for items now agreed with the relevant tax authorities. The full year effective tax rate,
before goodwill and exceptional items, is 16% against 22% in 2001, partly as a result of the full
adoption in the year of FRS 19 ‘Deferred Taxation:

During the year the group received £1.8 million from the final tranche of proceeds from the sale
of 100% Design. In November 2001 the group spent £300,000 acquiring the assets of Tempest
Consulting and further investments were made in ISl A start-up loan of £400,000 to the associate
entity, Capital Net, was repaid from the cash flows from the successful database products it has
launched. Net financing costs fell by £1.2 million to £4.2 million due to a combination of lower
interest rates, favourable exchange rates, and strong cash flows. Capital expenditure included
fitting out costs of £5.4 million for Institutional Investor, which moved to new offices in April.

The recession in financial markets has continued into the current year, particularly in the US, and
group profits are likely to be lower in the first quarter. Revenues in some businesses, including
Euromoney, show some signs of recovery. The first half should continue to benefit from last year's
recrganization and cost reductions.

The group believes that it will emerge strongly when the financial cycle begins an upswing and,
as a result, plans to increase spending on subscription marketing. It continues to focus on new
business investment and to seek acquisitions, particularly in business publishing.

We were delighted to welcome Michael Carroll, Editor of Institutional
Investor, to the board of the company in May.

Our people did very well 10 achieve such a good result in very tough
conditions. { thank them, on your behalf and mine, for their
coramitment, and | am confident they will do everything they can to
produce the best resuits from the best products.

I e

Padraic Fallon
Chairman
November 20 2002
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Operating & Financial Review

Operating and financial review

The downturn in world financial markets, and in global economies in general, meant trading
conditions in 2002 were exceptionally difficult. Full year revenues were down £25.1 millien on
2001. This includes an £8.3 million decline in advertising revenues and a £7.5 million reduction
in training and event revenues (which benefited from the biennial Vinisud wine convention), with
the remaining decline coming from subscriptions, offset by a £0.6 million increase in sponsorship
revenues. A principal driver of the revenue declines was the spending and headcount reductions
across the global investment banks. In addition, training courses were further hit by a reduced
willingness to travel following the September 11 terrorist attacks in the United States.

To compensate for the fall in revenues the group embarked on an extensive cost reduction
programme at the beginning of the year. The sale or closure in 2601 of Semaphore, Influent and
Investor Access, as well as a number of other magazines and internet businesses this year, resulted
in savings of £2.2 million. Permanent headcount at September 30 2002 was 1,358, a fall of nearly
20% since September 2001. There were also significant cost savings on print, paper, facility and
event costs, space and technology.

At IS], the first profitable trading month was achieved in September. The loss for the year was
£0.8 million against £4.5 million in 2001. Revenues grew by 8% over the prior year in difficult
trading conditions. The previous restructuring of the business and headcount reduction have
achieved a significant reduction in the cost base. Results have benefited from z large increase in
the depth of the service: some 6,000 data providers are carried compared with 1,800 when the
business was acquired in 1999,

Strategy
In 2001 the group set out its strategy for growing profits to a target level of £50 million.

The first part of this strategy focused on restoring operating margins to the levels achieved before
the significant investment in ISI and after other new media businesses. Actions taken to
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Operating & Financial Review conrinued

implement this part of the strategy have included the closure of loss-making businesses, the
restructuring of under-performing businesses, the elimination of low-margin products and
improvements in management quality. These actions are largely complete and the additional focus
in 2002 on reducing the costs base means the group is well positioned to henefit from increases
in revenues and margins once markets improve.

The rest of the strategy concentrates on growing the business, both organically and through
acquisitions, particularly in non-financial sectors.

Acquisitions and disposals

In November 2001, the company acquired some of the trade and assets of Tempest Consultants.
This significantly expands Institutional Investor’s position as the pre-eminent source of market
research based rankings of sell side analysts as well as increasing the research offering. It also
helped Institutional Investor run its first All-America Research Team awards dinner in November
2002, an event which attracted significant press coverage following the speech by Eliot Spitzer,
the New York Attorney General.

Institutional Investor compieted a reorganisation of its newsletter and journal portfolio. This
resulted in the closure of three titles and the sale of a further five. Institutional Investor now
publishes 30 newsletters and journals with further launches in the pipeline.

The company continues to pursue acquisition opportunities consistent with its strategy of
increasing its critical mass in sectors characterised by global markets, a2 demand for high quality
information, and high levels of capital investment and marketing. The flow of potential
transactions has been as high as ever but closing transactions has beer more difficult
because vendor price expectations generally fail to reflect market conditions. In 2003 there will
be an increased focus on acquisitions in non-financial sectors, particularly energy and
pharmaceuticals.
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Operating & Financial Review continued

New business investment

New business spend during 2002 was sharply down on 2001. This was largely the result of the
reduced investment in new media businesses following the strategic decision in 2001 to focus only
on internet businesses that had a clear path te a sustainable profit, with the emphasis on
subscription-driven revenues rather than advertising. As a result, both the II Searches and
Pharmalive database businesses are now profitable and growing.

Meanwhile investment in more traditional products has continued, albeit at a lower level than
usual because of the exceptionally difficult market conditions. Products launched during the year
include training courses for the pharmaceutical sector, awards dinners and conferences in the
energy sector (through the recently acquired Gulf Publishing), delegate-based events under the
Institutional Investor brand and local language products for the Chinese market.

This investment will continue in 2003 as the business positions itself for maximizing the returns
once markets improve.

Marketing and circulation
It has been a particularly difficult year {or marketing. The company has continued to invest in
building subscription revenues through a combination of direct mail, telesales, and e-marketing.

However, marketing spend was down on 2001. This was partly due to the tough markets, but also
because direct mail was ineffective, particularly in the US, due to the extra security measures put
in place after the events of September 11 and the subsequent anthrax scares. Marketing spend in
2003 is expected to return to more normal levels. During the year the central marketing
department was reorganised to further improve its effectiveness.

Risk management

Risk management processes have always been firmly embedded in the group’s operating activities.
Risk areas are the subject of regular review at board and senior management meetings and this
year specific risks addressed have included:
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Operating & Financial Review continued

brand and reputational risk

health and safety

IT security and disaster recovery

financial risks, particularly currency, interest and tax exposures
data protection

managing employment issues

The move to new offices in New York, at a cost of more than £5 million, for Institutional
Investor, Internet Securities, Euromoney Training and Business Traveller, has resulted in a
significant improvement in the IT environment and physical security. An ongoing challenge
will be to ensure that other parts of the business achieve the same standards. There has
also been an increased focus on disaster recovery in light of the heightened fears over
terrorist acts,

Debt

The group has traditionally funded its operations using a mixture of its strong operating cash
flows, retained eamings and debt. Year end debt levels were £10.4 million lower than last year,
despite a continued programme of acquisitions and new investment. Interest cover was nearly
seven times against an internal benchmark of five times, providing significant acquisition
capacity.

Tax and treasury

The group's tax and treasury committee meets twice a year and is responsible for recommending
policy to the board. The committee comprises the company's chairman, managing director, and
finance director as well as the finance director and deputy finance director of Daily Mail
and General Trust ple. The group's treasury policies are directed to giving greater certainty
of furure costs and revenues through the hedging of foreign currency and interest rate risks,
and ensuring that the group has both adequate liquidity for working capital and debt capacity
for acquisitions.
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Operating & Financial Review continued

The treasury function does not act as a profit centre, nor does it undertake any speculative trading
activity. It operates within policies and procedures approved by the board and monitored by the
tax and treasury committee.

Interest rate swaps and caps are used to manage the group’s exposure to fluctuations in rates on
its floating rate borrowings. The maturity profile of these derivatives is matched with the expected
future debt profile of the group. The group’s policy is to swap up to BO% of its term debt into
fixed rates and at September 30 2002 the group had 70% of its net debt fixed through interest
rates hedges. As long-term interest rates are usually higher than short-term rates this hedging
strategy has the effect of increasing the interest charge, but it also provides significant protection
against the volatility in the interest rate market.

The group is exposed to foreign exchange risk in the form of transactions in foreign currencies
eniered into by group companies and by the translation of the foreign currency results of overseas
subsidiaries into sterling for reporting purposes. The group does not hedge the translation of the
results of foreign subsidiaries, but does endeavour to match foreign currency borrowings to
investments in order to provide a natural hedge for the translation of the net assets of overseas
subsidiaries.

Approximately two-thirds of the group’s revenues are received in US dollars. Group subsidiaries
do not normally hedge transactions in foreign currencies into the functional currency of their own
operations. However, the group has in place a series of forward currency contracts up to
12 months ahead to hedge surplus US dollar cash flows.

Details of the financial instruments used are set out in note 18 to the accounts.
The group's tax rate has historically benefited from the tax amortization of goodwill arising on

US acquisitions. In 2002, the effective tax rate fell to 15.7% (excluding the effect of goodwill
amortization and exceptional items} compared to 22.0% in 2001. This reflects a number of factors
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Operating & Financial Review continued

including the change in geographical mix of taxable profits, the adoption of FRS 19 ‘Deferred
Taxation’ and the release of certain provisions in respect of prior years. In addition, the group’s
US acquisition structure was confirmed with the relevant tax authorities, resulting in the release
of prior years’ tax provisions of £6.8 million and a reduction of approximately 3% in the effective
tax rate for 2002 and future years.

Generally under UK corporation tax rules all exchange gains and losses are taxable on an accruals
basis. To hedge the cash flow effect of the tax on these exchange gains and losses, the group
has entered into a forward contract selling US$14 million in exchange for sterling, maturing on
March 27 2003. The cash flow consequence of a movement in exchange rates, which creates a
taxable gain or loss, is eliminated by the cash effect of an equal gain or loss on the forward
contract.

L e

Vi

Richard Ensor
Managing Director
November 20 2002
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Directors’ Report

The directors submit their annual report and group accounts for the year ended September 30 2002.

Principal activities and business review

Euromoney Institutional Investor is a leading international business to business publisher, focused
primarily on international finance. It publishes more than 100 magazines, newsietters and journals
as well as surveys, directories, books and maps. Euromoney Institutional Investor also runs
conferences, seminars and training courses and is a provider of electronic business information
through its capital market databases and emerging markets information service. A review of
operations and business developments is given in the operating and financial review on pages 4
to 9.

Group results and dividends .

The group profit for the year attributable to shareholders amounted to £23.5 million
{2001: £8.4 million). The directors recommend a final dividend of 9.75 pence per ordinary
share (2001: 9.75 pence), payable on January 24 2003 to shareholders on the register on
November 29 2002. This, together with the interim dividend of 5 pence per ordinary share
(2001: 5 pence) which was declared on May 23 2002 and paid on July 2 2002, brings the total
dividend payable to 14.75 pence per ordinary share (2000: 14.75 pence),

Directors and their interests

The directors who served during the year are listed on page 20, Mr MJ Carroll was appointed as
a director on May 23 2002. Following best practice under corporate governance and in accordance
with the campany’s Articles of Association, all directors submit themselves for re-election every
three years. Accordingly, Mr PM Fallon, Mr NF Osborn, Mr CR Brown, Mr GB Strahan,
Ms D Alfano and Mr CJF Sinclair, will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election. Also, as required by the Articles of Association,
Sir Patrick Sergeant, being over the age of 70, will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer himself for re-election. Details of the interests of the
directors in the ordinary shares of the company and of options held by the directors to subscribe
for ordinary shares in the company are set out in the report by the board to shareholders on
directors’” remuneration on pages 19 to 26.

Significant sharcholdings

At November 20 2002, being the latest practical date before approval of the accounts, notification
had been received of the following interests of 3% or more in the company's ordinary share
capital:

Number %
DMG [nvestment Holdings Limited 62,147,624 70.8
Prudential Corporation group of companies 3,235,408 37

Banque Internationale 3 Luxembourg SA has issued international depositary receipts in bearer
form in respect of a total of 1,379,000 shares {1.6%]} registered in its name.

Authority to purchase own shares

The company’s authority to purchase up to 10% of its own shares expires at the conclusion of the
company’s next annual general meeting. A resolution to renew this autherity for a further period
will be put to shareholders at this meeting.
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Directors’ REPOIT continued

Political and charitable contributions
During the year the group made charitable contributions of £99,000 {2001: £59,000). There were
no political contributions.

Disabled employees

It is the group's policy to give fuil and fair consideration to applications for employment from
people who are disabled; to continue, wherever possible, the employment of, and to amrange
appropriate training for, employees who become disabled; and to provide opportunities for the
career development, training and promotion of disabled employees.

Employee involvement

The group recognizes the importance of good communication in relationships with its staff. This
is pursued in a number of ways, including training and regular meetings between management
and staff, which seek to achieve common awareness on the part of all employees of the financial
and economic circumstances affecting the group’s performance. Many employees participate
directly in the success of the husiness through involvement in the group’s profit sharing schemes
and in the savings related share option scheme.

Supplier payment policy

Each Euromoney Institutional Investor business agrees payment terms with its suppliers on an
individual basis and it is group policy to make payments in accordance with these terms, The
company had 55 days of purchases in creditors at September 30 2002 (2001: 59 days).

Auditors
A resolution proposing the re-appointment of Deloitte & Touche will be submitied at the annual
general meeting.

Annual general meeting
The company’s annual general meeting will be held on January 23 2003.

By order of the hoar
C
Colin Jones

Company Secretary
November 20 2002
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Directors and Advisors

Chairman

Mr PM Fallon is an executive director and chairman, aged 56. He joined the company in 1974
and was appointed an executive director in Qctober 1975. He was appointed managing director
in 1985, chief executive in 1989 and chairman in 1992. He is chairman of the nominations
committee, He is also an executive director of Daily Mail and General Trust plc, a non-executive
director of Allied Irish Banks plc and a member of the board of the Trinity College Dublin
Foundation and the Royal Hibernian Academy Foundation.

Managing Director

Mr PR Ensor is an executive director and managing director, aged 54. He joined the company
in 1976 and was appointed an executive director in 1983. He was appointed managing director
in 1992 and is a member of the nominations committee. He is also a director of Internet
Securities, Inc.

Directors

The Viscount Rothermere is a non-executive director, aged 35. He was appointed a non-executive
director in September 1998 and is chairman of the remuneration committee. He is chairman of
Daily Mail and General Trust plc and a non-executive director of Fleming Mercantile Investment
Trust PLC.

Sir Patrick Sergeant is a non-executive director and president, aged 78. He founded the company
in 1969 and was managing director until 1985 when he became chairman. He retired as chairman
in September 1992 when he was appointed president and non-executive director. He is a member
of the audit and nominations committees and is also a2 non-executive director of Daily Mail and
General Trust ple.

Mr CJF Sinclair is a non-executive director, aged 54. He was appointed a non-executive director
in November 1985 and is a member of the remuneration and nominations cammittees. He is chief
executive of Daily Maii and General Trust plc and is 2 non-executive director of Reuters Group
PLC and of Schroders plc.

Mr NF Osbom is an executive director, aged 53. He joined the company in 1983 and was
appointed an executive director in February 1988. He is the publisher of Furomoney.

Mr DC Cohen is an executive director, aged 45. He joined the company in 1984 and was
appointed an executive director in September 1989, He is managing director of the training
division.

Mr CR Brown is an executive director, aged 48. He joined the company in 1982 and was

appointed an executive director in September 1989. He is director of the Specialist Publications
division and president of Institutional Investor, Inc.

Mr GB Strahan is an executive director, aged 57. He joined the company in 1985 and was
appointed an executive director in September 1989. He is managing director of Coaltrans
Conferences Limited.

Mr JP Williams is a non-executive director, aged 49. He was appointed a non-executive director
in June 1991 and is a member of the audit committee. He is finance director of Daily Mail and
General Trust pi¢ and a non-executive director of GWR Group plc.

*+$*Mr JC Botts is a non-executive director, aged 61. He was appeinted a non-executive director in

December 1992 and is chairman of the audit committee and a member of the nominations and
remuneration committees. He is chairman of Botts & Company Limited, a private equity
investment firm. Previously he had a long career with Citicorp in Europe, Africa and the Middle
East. He is a non-executive director of United Business Media plc and Amerindo Internet Fund
PLC.

Mr CR Jones is an executive director and finance director, aged 42. He joined the company in
July 1996 and was appointed finance director in November 1996. He is also the company
secretary and a director of [nstitutional Investor, Inc. and of Internet Securities, [nc.
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Directors and Advisors continued

Mr E Bounous is an executive director, aged 37. He joined the company in 1989 and was appointed
an executive director in November 1996. He is director of the Euromoney Conferences group and
chief executive officer of Institutional Investor’s conference division. He is also responsibie for a
number of specialist magazines in the group.

Mr SM Brady is an executive director, aged 37, He joined the company in 1988 and was
appointed an executive director in May 1999. He is managing director of Euromaney and is also
a director of Capital DATA Limited and Capital NET Limited.

Mr RT Lamont is an executive director, aged 55. He joined Institutional Investor, Inc. in 1976 and
was appointed an executive director in May 1999. He is editor of Institutional Investor's newsletter
division and a director of Institutional Investor, Inc.

Mr ID Bolsover is a non-executive director, aged 55. He was appointed a non-executive director in
May 2000. He has recently retired from his position as chairman and chief executive of Baring Asset
Management Holdings Limited. He is a member of the remuneration committee.

Ms D Alfano is an executive director, aged 46. She joined Institutionai Investor, Inc. in 1984 and
was appointed an executive director in July 2000. She i{s managing director of Institutional
Investor's conference division and a director of Institutional Investor, Inc.

Mr G Mueller is an executive director, aged 36. He joined the company in 1999 and was appointed
an executive director in July 2000. He is chairman of Internet Securities, Inc. which he founded
in 1994.

Mr MJ Carroll is an executive director, aged 45. He joined Institutional Investor, Inc. in 1994 and
was appointed an executive director in May 2002. He is the editor of Institutional Investor and a
director of Institutional Investor, Inc.

* non-executive director

+ member of the remuneration committee

% member of the nominations committee

* member of the audit comrittee

President Sir Patrick Sergeant

Company Secretary CR Jones

Registered Office Nestor House, Playhouse Yard, London EC4V SEX

Registered Number 954730

Auditors Deloitte & Touche, 180 Strand, London WC2R 1BL

Solicitors Nabarro Nathanson, Lacon House, Theobald's Road, London WC1X 8RW
Stockbrokers UBS Warburg, 1 Finsbury Avenue, London EC2M 2PP

Depositary Banque Intemnationale 2 Luxembourg SA, 69 route d'Esch, 2953 Luxembourg
Agents of the Depositary

Citicorp Investment Bank (Switzerland}, Bahnhofstrasse 63, PO Box 224, CH 8021 Zurich

Citibank NA, Citibank House, 336 Strand, London WC2R 1HB
Citibank NA, Avenue de Tervuren 249, B1150 Brussels

Registrars Capita IRG ple, Balfour House, 380/398 High Road, llford, Essex 1G1 I1NQ
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Corporate Governance

The Combined Code ont corporate governance is part of the listing rules of the Financial Services
Authority.

The paragraphs below and in the remuneration report on pages 19 to 26 set out how the company
has applied the principles laid dowa by the Code. The company has substantiatly complied with the
Code, save for a few exceptions disclosed in the directors' compliance statement on page 17 and 18.

Directors

Board

Details of directors who served during the year are set out on page 20. The board comprises the
chairman, managing director, 11 other executive directors and six non-executive directors. Of the
six non-executive directors, two are independent whilst the remaining four are also directors of
Daily Mail and General Trust plc, an intermediate parent company. There are clear divisions of
responsibility within the board such that no one individual has unfettered powers of decision.
There is a procedure for all directors in the furtherance of their duties to take independent
professional advice, at the company’s expense. They also have access to the advice and services
of the company secretary. All directors submit themseives for re-election at least once every three
years. Newly appointed directors are submitted for election at the first available opportunity after
their appointment. The board meets every two months and there is frequent contact between
meetings. Board meetings take place in London and New York, and occasionally in other locations
where the group has operations. The meetings are held to set and monitor strategy, to review
trading performance, ensure adequate funding, examine major acquisition possibilities and
approve reports to sharcholders. Procedures are established to ensure that appropriate information
is communicated to the board in a timely manner to enable it to fulfill its duties. A number of
standing committees deal with specific aspects of the group's affairs, each of which operates
within defined terms of reference.

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors bring both independent views and the views of the company’s
major shareholders to the board. The non-executive directors, whose biographies can be found
on pages 12 and 13 of the accounts, are: The Viscount Rothermere, Sir Patrick Sergeant,
CJF Sinclair, JP Williams, JC Botts and JD Bolsover.

Erecutive committee
The executive committee comprises the executive directors and senicr management. It is chaired
by the company’s chairman and meets each month to discuss and determine key operational issues.

Nominations committee

The nominations committee is responsible for proposing candidates for appointment to the board
having regard to the balance and structure of the board. It meets when required and comprises
the chairman {who is also chairman of the nominations committee}, managing director and three
non-executive directors; Sir Patrick Sergeant, CJF Sinclair, and JC Botts.

Remuneration commitice

The remuneration committee meets twice a year and additionally as required. It is responsible for
determining the contract terms, remuneration and other benefits for executive directors, including
serformance related profit share schemes. The composition of the committee, details of directors’
remuneration and interests in share options, together with information or directors® service
contracts, are set out in the Report on Directors’ Remuneration on pages 19 to 26.
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Corporate Governance continued

Communication with shareholders

The board encourages regular dialogue with shareholders. Meetings are held, both in the US and
UK, to discuss annual and interim resuits and highlight significant acquisitions or disposals, or at
the request of institutional shareholders. Private shareholders are encouraged to participate in the
annual general meeting. All shareholders have at least twenty working days notice of the annual
general meeting at which directors and committee chairs are available {or questioning.

Internal control and risk management

The hoard is responsible for the group's system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Such a system is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

In accordance with the guidance published by the Internal Control Working Party of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales (the Turnbull Report), the board has implemented an
ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the material risks faced by the business.

The board has reviewed the effectiveness of the group’s system of internal control and has taken
account of material developments which have taken place since September 30 2001. It has
considered the major business and financial risks, the control environment and the results of the
internal auditor’'s work. Steps have been taken to embed internal control and risk management
further into the operations of the group and to deal with areas of improvement which have come
te management’s and the board's attention.

Key procedures which the directors have established with a view to providing effective intemal
control, and which have been in place throughout the year, are as follows:

The board of directors
® The board normally meets six times a year to consider group strategy, financial performance,
acquisitions, business development and management issues;

® The board has overall responsibility for the group and there is a formal schedule of matters
specifically reserved for decision by the board;

¢ Each executive director has been given responsibility for specific aspects of the group's affairs;

¢ The board divides the group’s key risks into six broad categories and reviews and assesses
each of these at least annually;

® The board seeks assurance that effective control is being maintained through regular reports
from business group management, the audit committee and various independent monitoring
functions; and

® The board approves the annual forecast after performing a review of key risk factors.
Performance is monitored regularly by way of variances and key performance indicators to
enable relevant action to be taken and forecasts are updated each quarter. The board considers
longer-term financial projections as part of its regular discussions on the group's strategy.
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Corporate Governance continued

Quality and integrity of personnel

The integrity and competence of personnei is ensured through high recruitment standards and a
commitment to management and business skills training. High quality personnel are seen as an
essential part of the control environment and the high ethical standards expected are communicated
by management leadership and through the employee handbook provided to all employees.

Soctal responsibility

The group is aware of its social responsibility and has core procedures embedded in its internal
systems and controls to ensure that the group’s set social standards are not breached. The group
is a keen supporter of local initiatives and regularly sponsors a number of charities in the UK and
the US. Management actively recruit local graduates through the group’s graduate recruitment
program, providing a strong career path for successful candidates,

Environmental responsibility

Euromoney Institutional Investor does not directly operate in industries where there is the potential
for serious industriai pollution. However, it does take its environmental responsibility seriously
and complies with all relevant environmental laws and regulations in each country in which
it operates. Wherever economically feasible, account is taken of environmental issues when
placing contracts with its suppliers of goods and services. The group manages sensibly its energy
requirements.

Health and Safety

The group is committed to the health and safety of its employees and comrmunities in which it
operates. The group complies with all local health and safety regulations and makes use of external
heaith and safety advisors where appropriate. A heaith and safety audit was conducted during the
year, and the recommendations arising from this audit are being addressed. Senior management take
very seriously any information that demonstrates the group is in breach of health and safety
regulations.

Investment appraisal

The managing director, finance director and business group managers consider proposals for
acquisitions and the launch of new businesses. Proposals beyond specified limits are put to the
board for approval and are subject to due diligence by the group's finance team and, if necessary,
independent advisers. Capital expenditure is regulated by strict authorization controls. For capital
expenditure above specified levels, detailed written proposals must be submitted to the board and
reviews carried out to monitor progress against budget.

Accounting and computer systems controls and procedures

Accounting controls and procedures are regularly reviewed and communicated throughout the
group. Particular attention is paid to authorization levels and segregation of duties. The group’s
tax, cash and foreign exchange positions are overseen by the tax and treasury committee, which
meets at [east twice a year. Controls and procedures over the security of data held on computer
systems are periodically reviewed and are subject to internal audit. Controls include a specific
focus on data security and disaster recovery.

Internal audir

The group has an internal audit manager who draws on the services of the central finance team
to perform assignments. The responsibilities of internal audit cover four main areas; control of the
assets of the business; monitoring of the accuracy of financial reporting; adherence to group
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Corporate Governance continued

policies; and the accuracy of circulation figures. Businesses and central departments are selected
for an internal audit visit on a rotational basis and most businesses are subject to at least one
internal audit review each year. The internal audit manager reports his findings to management
and to the audit committee.

Accountability and audit

Audit committee

The audit committee comprises three non-executive directors; JC Botts {chairman), Sir Patrick
Sergeant and JP Williams, and meets at least twice each financial year. The commitiee
is responsible for reviewing the interim report and the annual report and accounts before
their submission to the board and overseeing conirols necessary to ensure the integrity of
the financial information reported to the shareholders. The audit committee advises the
board ¢n the appointment of external auditors and on their remuneration, both for audit
and non-audit work, with particular focus on effectiveness, independence and objectivity.
It discusses the nature, scope and any findings of the audit with the external auditors. The
committee also considers and determines relevant action in respect of any control issues raised
by the external auditors, and reviews the internal audit manager's programme and receives
periodic reports on his findings.

Financial reporting

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors are satisfied that the group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, they continue
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the accounts.

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the accounts

United Kingdom company law requires the directors to prepare accounts for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the group as at the
end of the financial year and of the profit or loss of the group for that peried. In preparing those
accounts, the directors are required to:

@ select suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently;

e make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e siate whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the accounts; and

® prepare the accounts on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and group and to enable them to ensure
that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985. They are also responsibie for the group’s
system of internal financial controls for safeguarding the assets of the group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors confirm that these requirements have been satisfied.

Staterment by the directors on compliance with the Combined Code

The Listing Rules require the board to report on compliance with the 45 provisions of the
Combined Code throughout the accounting year. Save for the limited exceptions outlined below,
the group has complied throughout the financial year ended September 30 2002 with the
provisions set oul in Section 1 of the Combined Code.
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Corporate Governance continued

Provision A.3.1 requires that non-executive directors should comprise not less than one third of
the board. The board currently comprises 19 directors of whom six are non-executive.

Provision A.3.2 requires that the majority of non-executive directors should be independent. Four
of the six non-executive directors are also directors of Daily Mail and General Trust ple, the
intermediate parent undertaking of Furomoney Institutional Investor PLC. The board does not
consider that the relationship with Daily Mail and General Trust ple has any influence au the
independence of the non-executive directors in question.

Contrary to provision A.2.1, the board has not identified a senior non-executive director as the
directors are of the opinion that all matters relating to the effective governance of the group must
be dealt with by the board as a whole.

Provisions B.2.2 and D.3.1 require the remuneration and audit committees to comprise entirely of
independent non-executive directors. The remuneration committee comprises four non-executive
directors, two of whom are also directors of Daily Mail and General Trust plc. The audit committee
comprises three non-executive directors, two of whom are also directors of Daily Mail and General
Trust ple. The non-executive directors who are also directors of Daily Mail and General Trust plc
have no personal firancial interests in the company (other than as shareholders). Alsc, as
explained in the report by the board to shareholders on directors’ remuneration, JC Botts has
options in Internet Securities, Inc. in lieu of fees as a non-executive director of that company,
which is coramon practice for non-executive directors in the US.

Provision B.1.7 indicates a preference for length of service contracts of directors to be not greater
than one year. The chairman and managing director have two year rolling service contracts. The
board considers this appropriate given the importance and commitment required for these
positions and given the compelitive pressures of the media industry. The board, however, would
not normally zppeint a new executive director with a service contract of more than one year.

On behalf of the board

M/W

Padraic Fallon
Chairman
November 20 2002
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Report by the Board to Shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee was established in 1993. The current members are The Viscount
Rothermere (chairman), CJF Sinclair, JC Botts and JD Belsover. All are non-executive directors of
the company. The Viscount Rothermere and CJF Sinclair are directors of Daily Mail and General
Trust plc but have no personal financial interests in the company {other than as shareholders), and
no day-to-day involvement in running the business. The committee consults the chairman and
managing director about its proposals and is authorized to seek professional advice from outside
the company where appropriate.

Palicy on directors’ remuneration

The group believes in aligning the interests of management with those of shareholders. The two
consistent objectives in the company’s remuneration policy since its inception in 1969 have been
the maximization of earnings per share and the creation of shareholder vaiue.

The first objective is achieved through a comprehensive profit sharing scheme that links the
pay of executive directors and key managers to the profits and growth in profits of the group
or relevant parts of the group. This scheme is completely variable with no guaranteed floor
and no ceiling.

To support the implementation of the policy of profit sharing, the group is divided into a number
of profit centres. The manager of each profit centre is paid a profit share related to the profit
centre’s profits and profit growth. Each profit centre is part of a larger business group. Each
business group manager has an incentive based on the business group's profits and profit growth.
Profit sharing encourages directors and managers to grow their businesses, to launch new
ventures and to search for acquisitions that would fit well with their businesses.

All those on profit shares are aware that if profits rise, so does their pay. Similarly if profits fail,
so do their profit shares. The profii shares of executive directors and senior managers make up
much of their total pay. For example, of the total remuneration of the thirteen executive directors
who served in the year, 66.3% was derived from profit shares.

The creation of shareholder value is also encouraged through an executive share option scheme.
The company's previous scheme was approved by sharcholders in 1985 and expired in 1995,
although options granted under this scheme may be exercised before various dates through to
2005. A new executive share option scheme was approved by shareholders in January 1996 and
the performance criteria under which options granted under this scheme may be exercised are set
out on page 26.

During the year share options were granted to DC Cohen, CR Jfones, E Bounous, SM Brady
and G Mueller {pages 24 & 25). Options are granted in phased blocks over a period of several
years.

The directors believe that the profit sharing and share option arrangements are responsible for
much of the company's success since [969. These arrangements serve shareholders by aligning
the interests of the directors and managers with those of shareholders and are considered an

important driver of the company's growth strategy.

The remuneration of the non-executive directors is determined by the board.
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Report by the Board to Shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration continued

Directors’ service contracts

With the exception of the chairman and managing director, each of the executive directors has a
twelve month rolling service contract. The chairman and managing director have two year rolling
service contracts and the remuneration committee believes that the length of these contracts is
appropriate given the competitive pressures of the media industry. The beard, however, would not
normally appoint a new executive director with a service contract of more than one year. None
of the non-executive directors has a service contract.

Directors’ remuneration
Year to September 30

Salary and Profit
Fees Benefits Share Pension Total Total
2002 2002 2002 2002 2002 2001
£ £ > £ £ - £
Executive directors
PM Fallon 29,730 146,261 1,638,251 138.800 1,953,042 1,758,643
PR Ensort 29,730 125,661 1,181,217 110,300 1,446,908 1,271,255
NF Osbomt - 108,997 191,606 16,654 317,257 504,373
DC Cohent - 95,646 106,465 72,019 274,130 364,315
CR Brown - 142 955 - 3,276 146,231 379,583
GB Strahan - 85,023 38,745 36,183 159,951 145,563
E Bounous - 87,258 281,009 7,352 375.619 322,117
CR Jones - 218,265 143,666 21,090 383,021 280,559
RT Lamont - 133,362 76,029 2,956 212,347 275,260
S M Brady* - 105,515 3,986 9,071 118,572 274,759
S Coxt - - - - - 79,780
D Alfano - 113,848 226,623 2,052 342,523 297,791
G Mueller - 116,882 60,632 2.111 173.625 154,452
MJ Carroll* - 51,412 7.151 1,291 59,854 -
Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere 29.730 - - - 29,730 29,151
Sir Patrick Sergeant 59.460 21,635 - - 81,095 74,029
CJF Sinclair 29.730 - - - 29,730 29,15§
JP Williams 29,730 - - ’ - 29,730 29,151
J(. Botts 33,108 - - -o- 33,108 32,529
JD Bolsover 29.730 - - - 29,730 29,151

270,948 1.546.720 3,955,380 423.155 6.196,203 6,331,612

* appointed May 23 2002
+ resigned March 30 2001

Fees as a director include fees paid as a director of subsidiary companies. Five of the directors
have waived profit shares in respect of the current and future years as follows: PM Fallon
£138,800; PR Ensor £100,000; NF Osborn £8,674; DC Cohen £65,000; GB Strahan £30,000. Profit
shares waived were paid into private pension schemes on the directors’ behalf.

t Included within total remuneration are amounts paid into a discretionary employee benefit
trust.
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Report by the Board to Shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration continued

Directors’ pensions
Executive directors participate in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme (a defined benefit scheme), or
the Euromoney Pension Plan (a money purchase plan) or their own private scheme.

Pension contributions
Contributions to

Harmsworth Euromoncy
Pensien Pension Private
Scheme Plant schemes Total
£ £ € £
Director
PM Fallon - - 138,800 138,800
PR Ensor 10,300 - 100,000 110,300
NF Osborn - 6,470 10,184 16,654
DC Cohen - 7.019 65,000 72,019
CR Brown - - 3,276 3,276
GB Strahan - 6,183 30.000 36,183
E Bounous - 7,352 - 7,352
CR Jones 21.080 - - 21,090
RT Lamont - - 2,956 2,956
S M Brady - 92,07 - 9.071
D Alfano - - 2,052 2,052
G Mueller - - 2,111 2,111
MIJ Carroll - - 1,291 1,2m
31,390 36.095 355,670 423,155

Under the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, the following pension benefits were earned by the
directors:

increase Accumulated
in accruecd tota) accrued
annual pension Transfer value annual pension
during the year of increase at year end
[ C £
Director
PR Ensor 4,295 38.870 45,685
CR Jones 1.929 5,500 10,856

The accrued pension entitlement is that which would be paid annually on retirement based on
service 1o September 30 2002 and ignores any increase for future inflation. The rransfer values
represent a potential liability of the company, not a sum paid or due to the individual director
and have been calculated on the basis of actuarial advice in accordance with the Actuarial
Note GN11, less directors’ contributions. The normal retirement age for the Harmsworth Pension
Scheme is 62 years.
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Report by the Board to Shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration continued

Directors’ interests in the company
The interests of the directors and their families in the ordinary shares of the company and its
subsidiaries as at September 30 were as foliows:

Ordinary shares of 0.25p each

2002 2001
Beneficial interests
PM Fallon 901,061 901,061
PR Ensor : 218,472 218,472
Sir Patrick Sergeant 317,804 317,804
CJF Sinclair 7.494 7,494
NF Osbom 46,040 46,040
DC Cohen 30.664 30,664
GB Strahan 32,068 32,068
JP Williams 1,825 1,825
JC Botts 5,503 5,503
E Bounous 6,920 6,920
CR Jones 8,280 8,280
RT Lamont 20,503 20,503
D Alfane 1,747 1,747
The Viscount Rothermere 17,470 17,470
G Mueller 5,503 5,502
1,621,354 1,621,354
Non-beneficial interests
Sir Patrick Sergeant - 82,900

Directors’ interests in subsidiaries

At September 30 2002 GB Strahan was beneficially interested in 500 ‘A’ ordinary shares of
Coaltrans Conferences Limited and G Mueller was beneficially interested in 659,999 shares of
Internet Securities, Inc. both subsidiaries of the group.

Directors” interests in Daily Mail and General Trust ple
The interests of the directors as defined under section 198 of the Companies Act 1985 in the shares
of Daily Mail and Generai Trust plc as at September 30 were as follows:

Ordipary shares A’ ordinary non-vating
of 12.5p each shares of 12.5p each
2002 2001 2002 2001
The Viscouni Rothermere 11,827,632 11,817,632 76,821,754 76,821,754
PM Failon 4,000 4,000 36,000 36,000
Sir Patrick Sergeant 4.000 4,000 90,000 90,000
CJF Sinclair - - 264,691 264,691
JP Williams - - 79.517 82,017
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Report by the Board to Shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration continued

Directors’ interests in Daily Mail and General Trust plc confinued

The Viscount Rothermere had non-beneficial interests as a trustee at September 30 2002 in
5,540,000 ‘A’ ordinary non-voting shares of 12.5p each (2001: 5,540,000 shares) plus 674,208
ordinary shares {2001: 674,208 shares).

Daily Mail and General Trust plc has been notified that, under section 204 of the Companies Act
1985 and including the interests shown in the table above, The Viscount Rothermere is deemed
to have been interested in 12,556,764 ordinary shares of 12.5p each (2001: 12,556,764 shares).

A1 September 30 2002, The Viscount Rothermere was beneficially interested in 756,700 ordinary
shares of Rothermere Continuation Limited (2601: 756,700), the company’s ultimate parent
company.

The Viscount Rothermere, CJF Sinclair and JP Williams had options over 156,000, 325,000 and
237.000 ‘A’ ordinary non-voting shares in Daily Mail and General Trust plc at September 30 2002
respectively {2001: 126,000, 275,000 and 207,000 respeciively), The exercise price of these options
range from £1.96 to £10.30. Further details of these options are listed in the Daily Mail and
General Trust plc group accounts.

There have been no changes in directors’ interests since September 30 2002.
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Report by the Board to Shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration continued

Directors’ share options
In addition to the beneficial interests noted above, the directors hold options to subscribe for new
ordinary shares of 0.25p each in the company as follows:

PM Falion

PR Ensor

NF Osborn

DC Cohen

CR Brown

GB Strahan

Number of options

Granted Lapsed
At start during during At end
of year year year of year
346,268 - - 346,268
85,000 - - 85,000
255,000 - - 255,000
686,268 - - 586,268
173,136 - - 173,136
75,000 - - 75,000
225.000 - - 225,000
2,690 - - 2,690%
475,826 - - 475,826
17,316 - - 17,316
8.000 - - 8.000
2,690 - - 2,690°
28,006 ~ - 28,006
5.888 - - 5,888
12,0600 - - 12,000
8,000 - - 8,000
2,052 - - 2,652*
- 6,000 - 6.000
27.940 6,600 - 33,940
16,000 - - 16,000
11,044 - - 11,044
100,000 - - 100,000
12,000 - - 12,000
28,000 - - -28,000
8,600 - - 8.000
175,044 - - 175,044
17,316 - - 17,116
8.000 - - 8.000
5.000 - - 5,000
2.690 - - 2.690"
33,006 - - 33,000

Annual Report £ Accounts 2002

Exercise
price
£3.54
£3.96
£4.31

£3.54
E3.96
£4.31
£3.60

£3.54
£3.96
£3.60

£3.54
£3.96
£5.38
£4.72
£3.35

£3.52
£3.54
£3.33
£3.96
£4.19
£5.38

£3.54
£3.96
£5.38
£3.60

Date
from which
excrcisahle

now
now
now

now
now
now
Oct 01 02

now
now
Oct 01 02

now
now
Mar 02 04
Aug 01 03
Jan 23 05

now
now
now
now
now
Mar 02 04

now

now
Mar 02 04
Oct 01 02

Expiry

date

Jun 19 05
Feb 11 09
Jun 2509

Jun 19 05
Feb 11 09
Jun 25 09
Apr 01 03

Jun 19 05
Jan 07 05
Apr Qi 03

Jun 19 05
Jan (7 05
Mar 02 1
Feb 01 04
Jan 23 12

Nov 29 03
Jun 19 05
Feb 08 03
Jan Q7 05
Jan 29 09
Mar 02 1)

Jun 19 05
Jan 07 05
Mar 02 11
Apr 01 03




Report by the Board to Shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration continued

Directors’ share options continued

CR Jones

E Bounous

RT Lamont

SM Brady

D Alfano

G Mueller

MJ Carroll

Total

Number of options

Granted Lapsed
At start during during At end
of year year year of year
8,448 - - 8.448
31,552 - - 31,552
12,000 - - 12,000
32,000 - - 32,000
60,600 - - 60,000
8,000 - - 8,000
2,680 - - 2.690*
- 6,000 - 6,000
154,690 6,000 - 160,690
8,000 - - 8.000
8.000 - - 8,000
40,000 - - 40,000
8,000 - - 8,000
24,000 - - 24,000
20,000 - - 20,000
8.000 - - 8.000
- 6,000 - 6,000
116,000 6,000 - 122000
10,000 - - 10,000
5,000 - - 5.000
15,000 - - 15,000
3,000 - - 3,000
10,000 - - 10,000
8.000 - - 8,000
20,000 - - 20,000
16,000 - - 16.000
8,000 - - 8,000
2052 - - 2,052
- 6.000 - 6.000
67.052 6,000 - 73,052
10,000 - - 10,000
8,000 - - 8.000
5.000 - - 5,000
23,000 - - 23.000
10,000 - - 10,000
- 6.000 - 6,000
10,000 6,000 - 16.000
4,000 - - 4,000
8,000 - - 8.000
4,000 - - 4,000
16,000 - - 16.000
1,827,832 30.000 - 1.857.832

Exercise
price
£3.55
£3.58
£3.96
£4.15
€431
£5.38
£3.60
£3.35

£3.52
E4.04
£3.33
E3.58
E3.96
£4.19
E5.38
£3.35

£4.19
£5.38

€3.52
E4.05
£3.58
£3.94
E4.19
£5.38
£4.72
£3.35

£4.19
£5.63
£5.38

£5.38
£3.35

£4.19
£5.63
£5.38

Date
from which
exercisable

now
now
now
now
now
Mar 02 04
Oct 01 02
Jan 23 05

now
now
now
now
now
now
Mar 02 04
Jan 23 05

now
Mar 02 04

nOw
now
now
now
now
Mar 02 04
Aug 01 03
Jan 23 05

now
Jan 05 03
Mar 02 04

Mar 02 04
Jan 23 05

now
Jan 05 03
Mar 02 04

Expiry

date

Feb 07 O7
Feb 24 Q4
Jan 07 05
Jan 29 09
Jun 25 09
Mar 02 1N
Apr 01 03
Jan 23 12

Nov 29 03
Dec 08 04
Feh 08 03
Feb 24 04
Jan 07 05
Jan 28 09
Mar 0z N
Jan 23 12

Jan 29 09
Mar 02 11

Nov 29 03
Dec 08 04
Feb 24 04
Jan 07 05
Jan 29 Q9
Mar 02 11
Febh Q1 04
Jan 2312

Jan 29 09
Jan 05 10
Mar 02 1

Mar 02 11
Jan 23 12

dan 29 09
Jan 05 10
Mar 62 11

* issued under the Euromoney Institutional investor PLC Save As You Earn scheme 1999
** issued under the Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Save As You Earn scheme 2000

No options were exercised during the year.
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Report by the Board to Shareholders
on Directors’ Remuneration continued

Directors’ share options continued

The market price of the company’s shares on September 30 2002 was £2.04. The high and low
share prices during the year were £3.80 and E2.04 respectively. The options granted in the year
were granted on January 23 2002. The average share price over the three business days before
January 23 2002 was £3.35. The aggregate gain made by directors on the exercise of share options
in the year was £nil {2001: Enil}.

The exercise of options granted under the 1996 executive share opton scheme requires
satisfaction of certain performance criteria which have been set by the remuneration committee.
For the grants of options under the 1996 scheme, made on January 23 2002, the performance test
set by the remuneration committee requires that the Total Shareholder Return (TSR] of the
company exceeds that of the average TSR for the FTSE 250 index for the same period. The TSR
test is carried out at the end of each calendar month starting 30 months after the optiorir grant
date. For the performance condition to be satisfied, the TSR of the company must exceed that of
the FTSE 250 in any four out of six consecutive months from that date.

In addition, the following directors hold options to subscribe for common stock of US$0.001 each
in [nternet Securities, Inc. a subsidiary of the company. The options for JC Botts are exercisabie
at the rate of 8.33% quarterly and are fully vested after three years. The options of G Mueller are
exercisable at the rate of 6.25% quarterly and are fully vested after four years. The options for
NF Osbom are exercisable at the rate of 25% after one year and at a rate of 6.25% quarterly
thereafter until fully vested after four years.

Granted Lapsed Date
At start during during Atend  Exercise  from which Expiry
of year year year of year price exercisable date
JC Botts 6.000 - - 6.000 US$7.40 now  May 1309
G Mueller 27.024 - - 27,024 USS7.40 now May 13 09
16,653 - - 16,653 U538.95 now Jan 01 10
43,677 - - 43,677
NF Osbomn 5.000 - - 5,000 US$8.95 now Jan 01 10

No options in Internet Securities, Inc. were exercised during the year.

The Viscount Rothermere
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
November 20 2002
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Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

We have audited the financial statements of Eurcmoney Institutional Investor PLC for the year
ended September 30 2062 which comprise the group prefit and loss account, the balance sheets,
the group cash flow statement, the group statement of total recognized gains and losses, the
reconciliation of movements in shareholders’ funds and the related notes 1 to 26. These financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As described in the statement of directors’ responsibilities, the company’s directors are responsible
for preparation of the financial statements in accordance with applicable United Kingdom law and
accounting standards. Qur responsibility is te audit the financial statements in accordance with
relevant United Kingdom legal and regulatory requirements, auditing standards, and the Listing
Rules of the Financial Services Authority.

We report to you our opinion as to whether the financial statements give a true and fair view and
are properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985. We also report if, in our
opinion, the directors’ report is not consistent with the financial statements, if the company has
not kept proper accounting records, if we have not received ail the information and explanations
we require for our audit, or if information specified by law or the Listing Rules regarding directors’
remuneration and transactions with the company and other members of the group is not disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects the company's compliance with
the seven provisions of the Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules and we
report if it does not. We are not required to consider whether the board’s statements on internal
control cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness of the group’s
corporate governance procedures or its risk and control procedures. We read the directors’ report
and the other information contained in the annual report for the above year as described in the
contents section and consider the implications for our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with the financial statements.

Basis of audit apinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom auditing standards issued by the
Auditing Practices Board. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the
significant estimates and judgments made by the directors in the preparation of the financial
statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the circumstances of the
company and the group, consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations which
we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other irregularity or error. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy
of the presentation of information in the financial statements.

Opinion

in our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and the group as at September 30 2002 and of the profit of the group for the year then
ended and have been prg_;\:erly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985.

Del f&:(ﬁ,"\;m%/r ,ﬁ J/\—‘

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London
November 20 2002
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. Group Profit & Loss Account

“for the year ended September 30 2002 o

All results arose from continuing operations.

Annual Report & Accounts 2002

Note 2002 2001
S . £000's £000's
. Turnover 2
- | Continuing operations 179,362 201,442
Closed businesses — continuing operations 372 3,341
Total turover 179,734 204,783
Operating profit before goodwill amortization 2
Continuing operations 28,691 30,366
Closed businesses ~ continuing operations 373 {2,248)
29,064 28,118
Goodwill amortization {6,125} {5,949}
Operating profit 2,3 22,939 22,169
Share of operating profit in associates 413 169
Exceptional profit/(loss) on disposal/ciosure
of businesses 4 1,533 (3,250)
Profit on ordinary activities before
interest and tax 24,885 19,088
Interest receivable 6 589 1,248
Interest payable and similar charges 7 (4,828} (6,665)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 20,646 13,67
Tax on profit on ordinary activities (3.961) {5.025)
Release of prior years' tax provisions 6,754 -
Total tax creditf{charge) on profit on ordinary activities 8 2,793 (5,025)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 23,439 8,646
Equity minority interests 38 (217}
Profit for the financial year 23.477 8,429
Dividends paid and proposed 5 (12,941) (12,9349)
Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year 10,536 (4,510}
Basic earnings per share 10 26.76Gp 9.81p
Diluted earnings per share 10 26.76p 9.61p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share
before goodwill amortization
and exceptional items 10 24.29p 20.10p
Dividend per share 9 14.75p 14.75p




Euromoney

Institutional -
Investor pec
Group Balance Sheet A et
as at September 30 2002 R - o
Note . 2002 2001
£000's £000%s
Fixed assets . o _
Intangible assets 1 24,685 31,049
Tangible assets 12 . 9,893 6,970
Investments 13 195 472
34,773 38,491
Current assets )
Debtors 15 40,007 49,064
Cash at bank and in hand 35,633 30,286
75,040 79,350 .
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 16 {55,612) (67,581
Net current assets 20,028 11,769
Tatal assets less current liabilities 54,801 50,260
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 17 (98,350} [102,742)
Provisions for liabilities and charges 19 {127 {1,189)
Deferred income (31,946} (38,920)
Net liabilities {75,622) (92,571)
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 21 219 219
Share premium account 22 33,743 33,739
Capital redemption reserve 22 8 8
Profit and loss account 22 (109,775} (126,884)
Equity shareholders’ deficit (75,805) {92,918)
Equity minority interests 183 347
(75,622) [92,571)
The accounts were approved by the board of directors on November 20 2002, L
b~
Richard Ensor
Colin Jones
Directors
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Fixed assets
Intangibie assets
Tangible assets
Investments

Current assets
Debtors
Cash at bank and in hand

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Net current liabilites

Total assets less current liabilities
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred income

MNet assets

Capiral aud reserves
Called up share capital
Share premium account
Capital redemption reserve
Capital reserve

Profit and loss account

Equity shareholders' funds

Company Balance Sheet =~ -

" as at September 30 2002 _

Note

11
12

- 13

1%

16

21
22
22
22
22

2002 2001
£000's £000's
7,882 8,149
3,116 3,481
79,287 71,660
90,285 83,290
27,5638 38,906
3,894 268
31,462 39,174
(46,077) (57,184)
{14,615} (18,010}
75,670 65,280
{16,215) {13,608}
(8,298} (9,573)
51,157 42,099
219 219
33,743 33,739
8 8
1,842 1,842
15,345 6,291
51,157 42,099

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC has taken advaniage of section 230 of the Companies Act
1985 and has not included its own profit and loss account in these accounts, The profit after
taxation of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC included in the group profit for the year is

£21,995,000 (2001: £14,551,000).

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on November 20 2002.

@; .

Richard Ensor
Colin Jones
Directors

Annual Report t& Accounts 2002




. Group Cash Flow Statement

o for the year ended September 30 2002

Cash inflow from continuing operating activities
Net cash inflow before exceptional items
Outflow related to exceptional items

Net cash inflow from continuing operating activities

Returns on investments and servicing of finance
Interest received

Interest paid

Dividends paid to minorities

Taxation

UK tax paid

Overseas tax paid
UK tax received
Overseas tax received

Capital expenditure and financial investment
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Saie of tangible fixed assets

Acquisitions and disposals

Purchase of unincorporated businesses

Purchase of subsidiary undertakings

Purchase of additionat interests in subsidiary undertakings
Cash acquired with subsidiary undertakings

Proceeds on sale of subsidiary undertaking

Equity dividends paid
Cash inflow before financiong

Finandng
Issue of new ordinary share capital
Redemption of secured loan stock
Bank loans repaid
Repayment of loan by associate
Revolving credit facilities:
Increase in borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Loan (repaid to)freceived from DMGT group company
Loan received from/(repaid to) to DMGT group company
Receipts on forward hedges

Increase in cash during the year

Note 2002 2001
£000's £000's

A 30,033 33,574
- (438}
30,033 33,136
589 1,288
(4,769} (6,717}
(126} (790)
(4,306) (6,219)
{3.288) (1,339)
(1,090) (2,035)
57 1,985

647 490
{3,674} (899)
(6,251} (2,169)
162 -
(6,089) (2,169)
{379) (420

- {7!503]
{43) {2,611)

- 120

1,772 -
1,350 {10,414)
(12,941} {12,932}
4,373 503

4 161

{35} -

- (120)

398 -
14,236 43,069
(31,759} (42,743)
{12,163) 12,536
12,163 (12,536)
533 43
3,377 410

B 7.750 913
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~ Notes to the Group Cash':qui;ffocﬁfément

A. Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

2002 2001
£000's £000's
Group operating profit R ' : 22,939 22,169
Amortizaticn of goodwill ' 6,125 5,949
Goodwill reinstated on disposal of titles o 512 -
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 2,827 3,168
Loss on sale of tangible fixed assets 32 -
Decrease in debtors 9,091 4,202
Decrease in creditors (10,646} (293)
Utilization of property rental provision (847) {1,621)
Net cash inflow from continuing operating activities -
before excepiional items 30,033 33,574
B. Reconciliation of net cash flow to movement in net debt
2002 2001
£000's £000°s
Increase in cash during the year 7.750 913
Cash inflow from change in debt finance {2.442) (12,742)
Decrease in net amounts due from DMGT group undertakings - 12,536
5,308 707
QOther non-cash items:
Currency translation differences 5,075 {438)
Movement in net debt in the year 10,383 269
Net debt at October 1 (73,229) (73,498}
Net debt at September 30 (62,846) {73,229)
C. Analysis of changes in net debt
At At
Qctober 1 Cash Exchange September
2001 flow movements 30 2002
£D0D's £000's £DOD's £ODD's
Cash at bank and in hand 30,286 7.148 {1,301) 315,633
Bank overdrafts (685) 602 7 (76)
29,601 7,750 {1,794) 35,557
Debt due within one year {12,335) 35 a01 (11.499)
Debt due in more than one year (102,742) (2,477} 6,869 (98,350)
(115,077) (2,442) 7,670 (109,849)
Amounts owed by DMGT group
undertakings 12,247 - {801) 11,446
Total net debt (73,229) 5,308 5.075 (62,846)
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Group Statement of Total
Recognized Gains & Losses

- Euromoney
Instifutional .
Investor pLC

for the year ended September 30 2002

Note 2002 2001
£000's £000's
Profit for the financial year 23,477 8,429
Foreign exchange translation differences - 22 6,801 (806)
Tax on foreign exchange translation differences 22 (740} 179
Total recognized gains and losses for the year 29,538 7,802
Reconciliation of Movements
in Shareholders’ Funds
for the year ended September 30 2002
2002 2001
£000's £000's
Profit for the financial year 23,477 8,429
Dividends paid and proposed (12,941) {12,939)
10,536 {4,510
Proceeds from exercise of share options 4 161
Reinstatement of goodwiil 512 2,002
Other recognized gains and losses relating to the year 6.061 {627)
Net decrease/{increase} in shareholders’ deficit 17,111 (2,974)
Opening shareholders’ deficit (92,918} (89.944)
Closing shareholders' deficit {75,805) {92,918}
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Notes to the Accounts

1 Accoonting policies
The accounts have bheen prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable UK
accounting standards. Set out below is a summary of the principal accounting policies adopted by the group.

Basis of consolidation i _

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the company, its subsidiary undertakings and
undertakings where the group exercises dominant influence, after eliminating the effects of intra-group
transactions.

‘Where the group or the company owns a non-controlling interest, held for the long term, in the equity share
capital of another company (or the equity of a partnership) and is in a position to exercise significant influence
over that company or parmership, the interest is equity accounted and the company or partnership treated as an
associated undertaking.

Where the group or the company owns 2 non-countrolling interest in the equity share capital of another company
and is not in a position to exercise significant influence, it is held as an investment and stated in the balance
sheet at cost.

The resuits of subsidiary and associated undertakings acquired during the year are incorperated from the effective
date of acquisition.

Turmover

Turnover represents income from subscriptions, advertising, sponsorship and delegate fees, net of value added
tax. Subscription revenues are recognized in the profit and loss account over the period of the subscription.
Revenue invoiced but relating to future periods is deferred and treated as deferred income in the balance sheet.

Derivatives and other financial instruments

The group uses various financial instruments to manage financial risk arising from fluctuations in interest rates
and foreign currency movements. These include currency swaps, forward foreign currency contracts, interest rate
swaps, caps and collars,

Currency swaps and forward foreign currency contracts are used to convert foreign currency funds into sterling
to meet sterling costs. Realized exchange gains and losses are recognized in the profit and loss account.

The premium or discount on interest rate instruments is recognized as part of net interest payable over the period
of {he contract.

Interest rate swaps, caps and collars, currency swaps and forward foreign currency contracts are not revaiued to
fair value or shown in the group balance sheet at the year end as all transactions derive from hedging activities.
Interest rate swaps are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transaction or,
if hedged forward, at the rate of exchange of the related foreign exchange contract. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates ruling at the balance sheet
date. '

Page 14 Annual Report & Accounts 2002




Notes to the Accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued .
Profit and loss accounts for overseas subsidiary undertakings are converted into sterling at the average daily rate
of exchange for the year, with the year end adjustment to closing rates taken to reserves.

Gains and losses arising on the retranslation of the net assets of overseas subsidiary undertakings at closing rates
are shown as a movement on reserves together with exchange differences arising on related foreign currency
borrowings used to finance the group investment in such overseas companies. Changes in the sterling value of
outstanding foreign currency loans which finance certain fixed assets are taken to reserves together with the
differences arising on the translation of the related foreign currency denominated assets. All other exchange
differences are taken to the profit and loss account.

Leased assets

Where the group has entered into finance leases, the obligations to the lessor are shown as part of the borrowings
and the corresponding assets are treated as fixed assets. Leases are regarded as finance leases where their terms
transfer to the lessee substantiaily all the benefits and burdens of ownership other than the right to legal title.

Depreciation is calculated in order to write-off the amounts capitalized over the estimated useful lives of the
assets by equal annual instaliments. Rentals payable under finance leases are apportioned between capital and
interest, the interest portion being charged to the profit and loss account and the capital portien reducing the
obligations to the lessor.

Other leases are regarded as operating leases whose rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a
straight line or other systematic rational basis as allowed by SSAP 21 ‘Accounting for Leases and Hire Purchase
Contracts.

Pensions
Contributions to pension schemes in respect of current and past service, ex-gratia pensions, and cost of living
adjustments to existing pensions are based on the advice of actuaries.

Contributions are charged to the profit and loss account when amounts become payable on the accruals basis.
For the defined benefit scheme there is no material difference at present between this basis and using a basis that
spreads the expected cost of providing pensions over the employees” working lives with the group.

The group currently accounts for pensions under SSAP 24 ‘Accounting for Pension Costs. Under FRS 17
‘Retirement Benefits', the group is required to provide additional disclosures relating to its pension schemes as
set out in note 5.

Earnings per share

The earnings per share calculations in note 10 follow the provisions of FRS 14 'Eamings per Share', after
calculating the dilution effect of the exercise of all ordinary share options granted by the company and excluding
the ordinary shares held by the Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust.
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued

Depreciation

Depreciation of tangible fixed assets is provided on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives at the
following rates per year:

Motor vehicles 20%
Office equipment 250 - 33%
Short-term leasehold premises over term of lease
. Freehold premises 2%
Goodwill

The group capitalizes all goodwill arising on consolidation for those acquisitions made after Qctober 1 1998,
Such goodwill is amortized to the profit and loss account over its estimated useful economic life on a straight
line basis up to a maximum of 20 years. Goodwill arising on consolidation in respect of acquisitions made prior
to that date remains eliminated against the profit and loss reserve, but is reinstated and charged to the profit and
loss account on subsequent disposal of the business to which the goodwill relates.

Where the company has divisionalized the unincorporated businesses of its subsidiaries, the investment in the
subsidiary then has the substance of goodwill and is reclassified accordingly. Goodwill arising in these
circumstances is not amortized in the company where the directors are of the view that the goodwill has an
indefinite economic life, but is reviewed annually for impairment. The non-amertization of goodwill represents
a departure from the Companies Act 1985 but is necessary to give a true and fair view under the provisions of
FRS 10 ‘Goodwill and Intangible Assets’ It is not possible to quantify the impact of this departure, as it would
depend on the life adopted. As at September 30 2002 and 2001, the total of such goodwill was £7,100,000,

Deferred taxation

Following the issue of FRS 19 ‘Deferred Taxation', deferred taxation is now provided in full on timing differences
that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date,
at rates expected to apply when the timing differences crystallize based on current tax rates and law, Deferred
tax is not pravided on timing differences on un-remitted earnings of subsidiaries and associates where there is
ne commitment to remit these earnings. Deferred tax assets are only recognized to the extent that it is regarded
as more likely than not that they will be recovered.

Following an updated review of FRS 19 timing differences arising on tax deductible goodwill written off to
reserves are now recognized. The company believes it appropriate to discount the resultant deferred tax liabilities
over an indefinite period because the businesses are expected to be held for the long term. The discounting effect
on short-term timing differences is not significant. The prior year effect of these changes is not material,
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2 - Segmental analysis

- Notes to the Accounts continued

United Kingdom North America Rest of Worid Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
£600°s £000s  EDOQ's £000's  £000's £000's  £000% £000's
Turnover
By destination:
Other continuing businesses 32,406 32,840 71,558 88,952 75,398 79,650 179.362 201,442
Closed businesses 59 659 272 2,220 41 462 372 3,341
32,465 33,499 71,830 91,172 75,439 80,112 179,734 204,783
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
E£000's €000's  £080's E000’s E000"s £000s  EDDO's £000's
Turnover
By activity and source:
Financial publishing 20,118 31,514 40,452 50,508 1,502 2,163 68,112 84,185
Business publishing 22,606 27,207 11,193 5472 3,425 3,762 37,224 37441
Training 13,982 16,950 6,236 8,580 2,194 2,730 22,412 28,260
Conferences and seminars 14,786 13,693 15,199 16,628 7,793 8,204 37.778 38,525
Databases and information services 4,312 4,285 3,156 2,570 6,368 6,176 13,836 13,031
Closed businesses 105 302 267 3,039 - - 372 3,341
81,909 93951 76,543 87,797 21,282 23,035 179,734 204,783
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2002 200t 2002 200t 2002 2001 2002 2001
E000"s L000's E000's £000"s E£00K)'s £000's EOOD's EQO0's
Operating profit
By activity and source:
Financial publishing 7,866 10,196 5,831 9,443 173 413 13,870 20,052
Business publishing 4,650 4,962 1,379 1,213 305 (177) 6,334 5,998
Training 2,923 4,163 1,137 1,926 389 679 4,449 6,768
Conferences and seminars 3,584 2,994 3,087 2,183 1,712 773 8,383 5,950
Databases and information services 3,347 2,924 (983} (2.780) (606} (2,874) 1,758 {2,730)
Closed businesses {11) (642) 384  [1,606) - - 373 {2,248}
Unallocated corporate costs (6,026) (5,622) (77) {50) - ~ (6,103) (5,672)
16,333 18,978 10,758 10,329 1,973 (1,186) 29,064 28,118
Goodwill amortization (328) (319) (5,776} (5,630) (21} - (8,125) (5,949)
Operating profit after goodwill
amortization 16,005 18,656 4,982 4,699 1,952 (1,186} 22,939 22,169

The goodwill amortizaton of £6,125,000 (2001: £5,949,000) can be allocated as follows; Business publishing,
£754,000 (2001: E£409,000); Conferences and seminars, £190,000 (2001: £383,000); and Databases and
information services, £5,181,000 {2001: £5,157,000}.
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- Notes to the Accounts continued

2 Segmental analysis continued o
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total

2002 200t 2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
£000's £000's E0Q0's £000's E000's E000's €000's £000%s
Net assets/{liabilities) '
By activity: .
Financial publishing 1,277 1,617 (6,481) (13,302) (214) {322) {5,418) (12,007)
Business publishing 4,093 3,237 1,214 1,203 (30} (535} 5,277 3,805
Training 481 662 (1,936) (1,159) (308)  (322) (1,763)  (819)
Conferences and seminars 1,464 205 (2,039} (4,143) 1,414 750 839  [3,188)
Databases and information services - - (514) (507) - - (514) {507)
Net operating assets/(liabilities) 7,315 5,721 {9.756} (17,908) 862 {429) (1,579) (12,616}
Net non-operating assets/(liabilities) (48,728) (54,268) (70,867) (78,430) 20,867 21,694 (98,728) (111,004)
Goodwill 5,575 6,872 18,728 24,177 382 . - 24,685 31,049

{35,838) (41,675) (61,895} (72,161) 22,111 21,265 (75.622) (92,571}

Net non-operating assets{[liabilities) include principally long-term loans and loan notes,
The goodwill net book value of £24,685,000 (2001: £31,049,000) can be allocated as follows; Business publishing,

£13,615,000 (2001: £14,378,000); Conferences and seminars, £2,996,000 {2001: £3,188,000); Databases and
information services, £8,074,000 (2001: £13,483,000).

3 Operating profit

Continuing Closed Continuing Closed
businesses businesses® Total businesses businesses” Totai
2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2001
£000"s EO00's £600's £000's £000's £000's
Tumover 179.362 372 179,734 201,442 3,241 204,783
Cost of sales {(59.938) (2777 (60,215} (69,401} {3,279) (72,680)
Gross profit 119,424 95 119,519 132,041 62 132,103
Distribution costs (6,50%) - (6,505} {7,004} {49) {7.143})
Administrative expenses (90,353) 278 (90,075) (100,530) {(2,261) {102,791}
Operating profit/{loss) 22,566 373 22,939 24,417 [2,248) 22,169

Administrative expenses includes goodwill amortization for continuing businesses of £6,125,000
(2001: £5,949,000).

*Closed businesses form part of continuing operations.
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. Notes to the Accounts continued

3 Qperating profit continued
Operating profit is stated after charging:

Goodwill amortization

Depreciation

Auditors’ remuneration;
Group [company £122,000 {2001: £122,000))
Fees for non-audit services

Property operating lease rentals

Foreign exchange (gain)floss {215} 265

The non-audit services principally relate to taxation services.

4 Exceptional profit/(loss) on disposal/closure of businesses

In March 1999, the group sold its investment in 100% Design Limited for a cash consideration of £743,000 and
a performance based deferred consideration. During 2002, the group received the final element of the deferred
consideration amounting to £1,772,000.

The group closed its Technology + Media Limited business in the period which resulted in a goodwill write off
of £239,000.

During the previous year the group closed three of its non-performing businesses resulting in an exceptional

charge of £3,250,000.

5  Staff costs
{i) Directors’ emoluments

2002 2001
EQOO's £000"s
The emoluments of the directors of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC
were as follows:
Fees 21 266
Management remuneration 5,502 5,646
Pension contributions 423 420
6.196 6,332

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Report by the Board to Shareholders on Directors’ Remuneration
on pages 19 to 26.

(ii) Number of staff

2002 2001

Average Average

United Kingdom 656 780
North America 531 629
Rest of World : 398 471
1,585 1,880
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Notes to the Accounts continued

5 Staff costs conrinued
(iii) Staff costs

2002 2001

£000's ‘ £000's

Salaries, wages and incentives . 56,331 . 62,511
Social security costs 4,856 5,683
Pension contributions 1,029 1,066
62,216 69,260

(iv) Pension contributions

The company operates the Euromoney Pension Plan in the UK and the Euromoney Institutional Investor Inc.
Retirement Savings Plan in the US. It also participates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, which is opergted by
Daily Mail and General Trust ple.

The pension charge for the year ended September 30 comprised:

2002 2001
£000's £000"s
Harmsworth Pension Scheme 224 220
Euromoney Pension Plan 251 205
Private schemes 554 641
1,029 1,066

Harmsworth Pension Scheme

The Harmsworth Pension Scheme is a defined benefit scheme providing service-related benefits based on final
pensionable salary. The assets of the scheme are held independently from the company’s finances and are administered
by a Trustee company. Pension costs are assessed on the advice of an independent qualified actuary following triennial
valuations using the projected unit method. This scheme is no longer offered to new employees of the company.

A valuation of this scheme was carried out as at March 31 2001. The assumptions having the most significant
effect on the results of the valuations are shown in the following table:

Price inflation 2.5% p.a.
Salary increases 4.3% p.a.
Pension increases 2.5% p.a.
Investment return 6.8% p.a.
Dividend growth 3.5% p.a.

The contribution rate paid by empioyees is 5% of pensionable salaries and the company's cash contribution is
12% of pensionable saiaries.

The surplus identified from the last valuation of the scheme will be amortized over a period of 11 years using
the straight line method. The pension cost to the company of this scheme over the estimated average service life
of employees is 10.4% of pensionable salaries.

The next valuation of the scheme will be carried out as at March 31 2004,

The effect of UTTF 6 "Accounting for Post-Retirement Benefits other than Pensions’ is not material,
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Notes to the Accounts continued

5  Staff costs continued
FRS 17 ‘Retirement Benefits’ R

The company is unable to identify its share of the underlymg assets_and liahilities in the Harmsworth Pension
Scheme since the scheme includes members from other compames thm the Daily Mail and General Trust group,

The matio of assets to liabilities in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, calculated according to the requirements
of FRS 17, was 80% at the year end (2001: 102%). If caIculated on this hasis and reflecting current market
conditions, it is anticipated that the pension charge by the company would be around 24% of pensionable salaries
for 2003. However, an interim valuation of this scheme as at March 31 2002 on the normal funding basis indicated
only 2 marginal reduction in solvency compared with a year earlier. Following this review, the actuary confirmed
that there was no particular need to adjust the company cash contribution rate of 129%. However this position will
be closely monitored going forward.

Euromoney Pension Plan
The Euromoney Pension Plan is a defined contribution scheme under which coutnbunons are paid by the
employer and employees.

The assets of the plan are invested under trust with Scottish Widows in funds selected by members and are held
independently from the company’s finances,

Qverseas Pension Plans

Institutional Investor, Inc. contributes to a 401k savings and investment plan for its employees which is
administered by an independent investment provider. Employees are able to contribute up to 15% of salary with
the company matching up to 50% of the employee contributions, up to 5% of salary.

Stakeholder Pensions
The company provides access to a stakeholder pension plan for refevant employees who are not eligible for other
pension schemes operated by the group.

Euromoney . -

6 Interest receivable

2002 2001

EDOD's £000's

Interest receivable from short-term investments 589 1,248
7  Interest payable and similar charges 2002 2001
£000"s £000's

Bank overdrafits - 5
Revolving credit facility 4,824 6,654
Secured loan stock 4 2
4,828 6,665
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‘Notes to the Accounts continued

8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

United Kingdom

Corporation tax at 30% (2001: 30%)
Associates

Release of prior years’ tax provisions
Over provision in respect of prior years

Foreign tax
Qverseas taxation

Underj{over) provision of overseas taxation in respect of prior years

Total current tax {credit)/charge

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of asset timing differences
Origination and reversal of liability timing differences
Increase in discount

Recognition of deferred tax assets in respect of prior years

Total deferred tax (see note 20)

Total tax {credit)/charge on profit on ordinary activities

2002
£C00’s

2001
000"
(as restated)*

4,320 4,489
125 53
(6,754) -
{403) (604)
{2.712) 3,938
766 1,104
335 a7
(1,611} ) 5,025
{720} (22
2,989 3,195
{2,923} {3,173}
(528) -
(1,182} -
{2,793) 5,025

The standard rate of current tax for the year, based on the UX standard rate of corporation tax, is 30% (2001: 309%).
The current tax charge for the year is different from 309% of profit before tax for the reasons set out in the following

reconciliation:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

Tax at 30%
Factors affecting (credit)/charge:
UK goodwill amortization
Non-taxable items and additional deductible UK items
US goodwill amortization
US state taxes
Disallowabie expenditure
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances
Lower rates of tax on overseas profits
Utilization of losses brought forward
Overseas losses for which no relief is currently available
Release of prior years' tax provisions
Over provisions in prior years

Current tax (credit)/charge ar the year

*see note 1.
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1002 2001
£000's £000's
(45 restated)*
20,646 13,671
6,194 4,101
1,838 1,785
{1.836) -
(3.184} {1,250)
270 524
2,590 764
20 56
(149} {531}
{832} (169)
- 366
{6,754) -
(68) {621}
(1,611} 5,025




o NOtGS__tO“ the ACCOUIltS contintied

Euromoney
Institutional
Investor pLC

8 Tax on proﬁt on nrdmary activities continued

- Included within the corpotation tax (credit)/charge for the year isa tax Credlt of £mI (2001: £121,000) in respect
of exceptional items shown in the profit. and loss account after operating proﬁt {see note 4}. The exceptional
items in 2002 do not give rise to.any tax charge or credit due to-the availability of brought forward capital losses
and the non-deductible nature of UK goodwill amortization on share acquisitions. The tax credit in 2001 arises

on closure costs in relation to UK businesses.

The release of prior year tax provisions of £E,754,0(_}0 relates to tax provisions no longer required following
agreement of certain open issues with the relevant tax authorities in relation to the group's US acquisition

stracture.

9 Dividends

Interim paid 5p per share (2001; 5p)
Final proposed 9.75p per share {2001: 9.75p)

Employees’ Share Ownership Trust dividend

10 Earnings per share

Basic earnings

Goodwill amortization

Exceptional (profit)/loss on disposal/closure of businesses (note 4}
Release of prior years' tax provisions (note 8)

Adjusted earnings before goodwill amortization and exceptional items

Weighted average number of shares
Shares held by the Employees’ Share Ownership Trust

Effect of dilutive share options

Diluted weighted average number of shares
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2002 2001
£000°s £000’s
4,390 4,388
8.560 8,560
12,950 12,948
)] {9)
12,941 12,939
2002 2001
£000's E000's
23,477 8,429
©.125 5,949
(1,533) 3,250
(6,754) -
21,315 17,628
Number Number
000's 000's
87,793 87,757
{59) [59)
87,734 87,658
1 4
87,735 87,702
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Notes to the Accounts. continued

10 Earnings per share continued Pence per Pence per

share share

26.76 9.61

Basic earnings per share
Effect of dilutive share options

Diluted earnings per share o 26.76 9.61
Effect of goodwill amortization s SR 6.98 6.78
Effect of (profit}/loss on disposalfclosure of busmsses ' {1.75} 3.7
Effect of prior years' tax provision releases . e - {(7.70) -
Adjusted diluted earnings per share before goodw:.ll amortxzauon and

exceptional items 24.29 20,10

The adjusted diluted earnings per share figure has been disclosed since the directors consider it to give a more
meaningful indication of the underlying trading performance.

11 Intangible fixed assets

Group Company
goodwill goodwiil

£000's €000°s
Cost
At October 1 2001 45,944 8,149
Additions 339 -
Disposals {283) -
Fair value adjustments (302) (226}
At September 30 2002 45,698 7923
Amortization
At October 1 2001 14,895 -
Charge for the year 6,125 41
Disposals {7) -
At September 30 2002 21,013 41
Net book value at September 30 2002 24,685 7.882
Net book value at September 30 2001 31,049 8,149

Included in the goodwill amortization charge for the year is £5,140,000 (2001: £5,140,000) in respect of Internet
Securities, Inc. whose goodwill is amortized over five years. All other goodwill is amortized over 20 years.
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12 Tangihkle ﬁxed assets 7 o

Group

Cost _

At October 1 2001
Additions
Disposals

Transfers

Foreign exchange
At September 30 2002
Depreciation

At October 1 2001
Charge for the year
Disposals

Transfers

Foreign exchange

At September 30 2002
Net hook value at September 30 2002
Net book value at Qctober 1 2001

Company

Cost

At October 1 2001
Additions

Disposals

At September 30 2002

Depreciation

At October 1 2001
Charge for the year
Disposals

At September 30 2002
Net book value at September 30 2002

Net boek vaiue at October 1 2001

Motor . ‘laschu'ld
vehicles ... - premises premises Total
EOO0's .. €000 U £000's £000's £000°s
a1 iane 748 862 22,754
77 - _ . 2',_0_03 4,182 _ - 6,262
(176) (2955  (3,373) - (6,504)
44 (49} -5 - -
1 - {528) {(299) - (826)
377 12,587 7,860 862 %1,686
213 10,802 4,621 148 15,784
83 2,181 546 17 2,827
(141) (2,856} (3,303) - (6,300)
29 (25) {4) - -
- (479) (39) - (518)
184 9,623 1,821 165 11,793
193 2,964 6,039 697 9,891
218 3,314 2,724 714 6,970
Short-term

Motor Office leasehold Freehold
vehicles equipment premises premises Total
£000's £000's E000's E000's £000's
370 4,005 2,997 862 8,234
23 373 - - 396
(83) (42) - - {125)
310 4,336 2,997 862 8,505
188 3,177 1.240 148 4,753
63 526 127 17 733
{75) (22) - - (97)
176 3,681 1,367 165 5,389
134 655 1,630 697 3.t16
182 828 1,757 714 3,481
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Notes to the Accounts continued

13 Fixed asset investments

. ‘ :‘. : " . Eso‘r
Investments in Loans o Prmrimnns for investment
associated assoclated liabiliﬁ_cs and ) in own Trade
undertakings undertaiiings " charges . shares investinent Tatad
£000's . EdoO's DL TE0RD'S £000°s £000's £000's
Group o
At October 1 2001 {180) 398 - T 166 74 14 472
Share of retained profits 287 - : - - - 287
Repayment of lean - (398) - - - (398)
Utilization of provision - - (166} - - {166)
At September 30 2002 107 - - 74 14 195
ESOT
[ovestments Investment
in associated in own Trade
Subsidiaries undertakings shares investment Total
£000's EODD's £000's £000Q's EOO0's
Company
At October 1 2001 71,538 34 74 14 71,660
Additions 10,076 - - - 10,076
Disposals {513) - - - (513)
Foreign exchange (1,918} - - - {1,936}
At Septrember 30 2002 79,165 34 74 i4 79,287

The principal associated undertaking at September 30 2002 was Capital NET Limited whose principal activity is
the provision of electronic database services. The group has a 49.7% interest in Capital NET Limited.

The group has a 50% interest in Capital DATA Limited which is accounted for as a trade investment as the group
does not exercise significant influence nor is it involved in the day to day running of the business. The group is
entitled to 28.2% of Capital Data’s revenues which amounted to £2,437,000 in the year (2001: £2,266,000).

The investment in own shares is held by the Euromoney Employees’ Share Ownership Trust (ESOT). At
30 September 2002 the ESOT held 58,976 shares carried at a historic cost of £1.25 per share with a market value
of £120,000 {2001: 58,976 shares with a market value of £126,000]. Interest and administrative costs are charged
to the profit and loss account of the ESOT as incurred.
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.- Notes to the Accounts continued

13 Fixed asset investments continued L )
' Detalls of the principal subsidiary undertakings included in these consolidated financial statements at September 30
2002 are as follows: U o
Principal activity Country

Direct investments L ‘ ) .Prtrbdrﬂun‘ held and operation of incorporation
Adhesion (UK} Limited . - 100% . Conventions England
Business Traveller (Holdings) Limited S 950t Holding company England
Coaltrans Confci-ences-l.imited . . 95% . Conferences England
Euromoney Publications (Jersey) Limited - 1009+ Publishing Jersey
Euromoney Publications (Qverseas) Limited  100% Holding company England
Euromoney US Holdings LP 100% Holding company us
Glenprint Limited 100% Publishing England
Mondiale Corporation Limited 100% Publishing England
The Petroleum Economist Limited 100% Publishing England
Tipall Limited 100% Property holding England
World Link Publications Limited S0%0# Publishing England

All holdings are of ordinary shares.

* The company also owns 100% of the preference shares of Business Traveller (Holdings) Limited. Subsequent to
the year end the company purchased the remaining 5% of its ordinary share capital,

‘+Euromoney Publications (Jersey} Limited's principal country of operation is Hong Kong.

#World Link Publications Limited is treated as a subsidiary undertaking and fully consolidated in the group’s
results because the group is in a position to exercise dominant influence over its operating and financial
policies,

Principal activity Country
Indirect investments Proportion held and operation of incorporation
Adhesion et Associes SA 100% Conventions France
Business Conventions Intemationale 100% Conventions France
Carlcroft Limited 1000% Publishing England
EIl Holdings, Inc. 100%* Holding company us
Engel Publishing Partners - 90% Publishing us
Euromoney, Inc. 100% Helding company us
Euromoney Training, Inc, 10090 Holding company uUs
Euromoney [Singapore) Pte Lid. 100% Training Singapore
Gulf Publishing Company 100% Publishing Us
Institutional Investor, inc. 100% Publishing us
Internet Securities, Inc, 83% Information services Us
Latin American Financial Publications, Inc. 100% Publishing us
Med Ad, Inc. 100% Holding company us
MIS Training Institute, Inc. 100% Training us
MIS Training (UK) Limited 100% Training England
Perry Publications Limited 95% Publishing England
Perry Publications, Inc. 950 Publishing us

All holdings are of ordinary shares.
* The company also owns 100% of the preference shares of EII Holdings, Inc.
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N OtES tO the ACCOU.IltS continued

' The following interests in subsidiaries were acquired in the year,
' acquisition method. - LA

14 Acquisitions © R _
-all of which were accounted for using the

Incréase in equity sharcholdings TR Sl ER
On October 1 2000, the group increased its equity shareholding In-World Link Publications Limited from 46% to
50% for a cash consideration of £152,000, of which £109,000 was paid in January 2001 and £43,000 was paid
in May 2002. o I S

Acquisition of new businesses i -
On November 2 2001, the group purchased some of the assets and trade of Tempest Consultants Limited for a
cash consideration of £339,000 resulting in goodwill of the same amount.

On May 23 2001, the group purchased the business and assets of The Company Investor Show and The Technology
Investor Show from Imperator Financial Conferences and Exhibitions for a cash consideration of £822,000, of
which £782,000 was paid by September 30 2001 and £40,000 was paid in March 2002, resulting in goodwill of
the same amount,

15 Debtors
Group Group Company Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000's £000's EQQ0's EQ0O's
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 23,117 31,602 10,867 16,571
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings (note 25) 11,852 12,247 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 12,326 20,251
Other debtors 1,118 2,177 2,245 1,268
Deferred tax [note 20) ’ 1,182 - 1,182 -
Prepayments and accrued income 2,738 3,038 948 816
40,607 49,064 27,568 38,906
16 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Group Company Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
E00O's £000's E000's £000's
Bank overdrafts 76 685 - 731
Redeemable secured loan stock 53 88 53 68
Trade creditors 2,695 7,397 1,132 5,082
Amounts owed to DMGT group undertakings (note 25) 14,130 14,737 14,102 14,727
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - 6.506 6,885
Other creditors 7,091 6,319 4,539 4,396
Corporation tax 5,755 10,564 1.253 6,201
Accruals 17,258 18,822 9,938 10,530
Deferred consideration for acquisitions - 415 - -
Proposed dividend 8,554 8,554 ° 8,554 8,554
55.612 67,581 46,077 57,184
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' Notestothe AC(;OUIltS_ continued

17 Credxtors amounts falling due after more than one year . "

Group Group Company Company

Lo 2002 2001 2002 2001

- ED0Q's £000's E000%s E0OO's

Revolving credit facilities {note 18) 98,350 102,742 16,215 13,608

18 Treasury

An overview of treasury policies is included within the operating and financial review on pages 4 to 9. Short-term
debtors and creditors and inter-company balances have been excluded from the following disclosures other than
the currency profile of monetary assets and liabilities.

Financial liabilities 2002 2001
£€000's £000's

Bank overdraft 76 685
Amounts owed to DMGT group undertakings 11,852 12,247
Redeemable secured loan stock 53 88
Revolving credit facility 98,350 102,742
110,331 115,762

Financial assets 2002 2001
£000°s £000's

Cash at bank 35,633 30,286
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings 11,852 12,247
47,485 42,533

Redeemable secured loan stock
The redeemable secured loan stock can be redeemed at par at the holder’s option at six months notice. Interest
is payable at 19% below LIBOR.

Revolving credit facility

The group is one of a number of approved borrowers under a £471.3 million Daily Mail and Gereral Trust plc
multi-currency committed revolving credit facility. Interest is payable on the facility at a rate of 0.57% above
US dollar LIBOR, As atr 30 September 2002 there were no other uncommitted un-drawn facilities directly
available to the group. No commitment or arrangement fees are paid to the banks in respect of the revolving
credit facilities, but a fee is included within the 0.57% margin which is paid by the group to the Daily Mail and
General Trust ple. The facility expires on September 2005.
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* Notes to the Accounts continued

RN

- 18 Treasury conftinued
Maturity profile of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the group’s financial Habilities as at September 30 2002 was as follows:

Qwed to
DMGT
Loan Bank group Revolving
stock  overdraft undertakings credit Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's £0007s
Amounts falling due:
Within one year 53 76 11,852 - 11,981
Between one and two years - - - - -
Between two and five years - - - 98,350 98,350
Gross financial liabilities 53 76 11,852 98,350 110,331
The maturity profile of the company's financial liabilities as at September 30 2001 was as follows:
Owed to
DMGT
Loan Bank group Revolving
stock overdraft undertakings credit Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Amounts falling due:
Within one year 88 685 12,247 - 13,020
Between one and two years - - - - -
Between two and five years - - - 102,742 102,742
Gross financial liabilities 88 685 12,247 102,742 115,762

Currency and interest rate profile of financial liabilities

The profile of financial liabilities stated after taking account of varicus interest rate swaps as at September 30

was as follows:

Currency Us dollars Sterling Total  US dollars Sterling Total
2002 2002 2002 2001 2001 2001
£000°s £000°s E000's £000's £000's £000's
Floating rate 59,364 96 59,460 61,241 88 61,329
Fixed rate 50,871 - 50.871 54,433 - 54,433
110,235 96 110,331 115,674 88 115,762
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- Notes to the Accounts continues

” y

‘18 Treasury continued - R

Of the fixed rate labilities: S T 00 2001
Weighted average interest rate e 6.23% 6.25%

Weighted average period for which the rate is fixed = -+ 1.94 years 3.03 years

Cun'en(:y-_:and fntu_mt pmﬁle of financial assets EREREE:
The interest rate risk profile of the group’s financial assets atSeptember 30 2002 was as follows:

USdollars  Steriing Others Total
£000’s £000's E000s £000's

Floating rate
Cash at bank 24,455 6,457 2,565 ’3‘3.477
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings 11,852 - - 11,852
36,307 6,457 2,565 45,329
Non-interest bearing 1,733 152 27 2,156

38,040 6.609 2,836 47,485

Cutrency and interest profile of financial assets
The interest rate risk profile of the group’s financial assets at September 30 200t was as follows:

US dollars Sterling Others Total
£000's £000°s £000s £000's

Floating rate
Cash at bank 23,784 1,290 748 25,822
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings 12,247 - - 12,247
. 36,031 1,290 748 38,069
Noun-interest bearing 3,150 - 1,314 4,464
39,181 1,290 2,062 42,533

Currency profile of net monetary assets

The table below shows the group’s currency profile which gives rise to net currency gains and losses recognized
in the profit and loss account. These comprise the monetary assets and liabilities of the group which are not
denominated in the operating currency of the operating unit involved, but exclude certain non-sterling borrowings
which are matched by equivalent group assets or are treated as hedges of net investments in overseas operations.
The amounts shown take into account the effect of currency swaps, forward contracts and other derivatives entered
into to manage these exposures.
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- Notes to the Actounts continued

18 Treasury continued P
As at September 30 2002 these exposures were as follows: - .

- Net forngn currency monetary assetsf/(liabilities)

_ Sterling - . US dollars Other Total
. E0OO's: T - £000's £000's
Functional currency:
Sterling FaAroe 1,070 7,235
US Dollar 167 © - 167
Other {70} 7 773
Total 97 1,077 8,175
As at September 30 2001 these exposures were as follows:
Net foreign currency monetary assets
Sterling US dollars Other Total
£0DO's £E000's £000's
Functional currency:
Sterling - 1,020 11,477
US Dollar 72 - 72
Other - 422 1,186
Total 72 1,442 12,735

Fair values of financial assets and liahilities

Set out below is a comparison of hook values to fair values of all the group’s financial assets and labilities as
at September 30 2002. Market values have been used to determine the fair value of all swaps, caps and foreign

curyency contracts.

Primary financial instruments held to finance the group’s operations:
Liabilities:
Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term borrowings
Long-term borrowings

Assets:
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings
Cash at bank

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and
currency profile of the group:
Interest rate swaps

Derivative financial instruments held or issued to hedge the curyency
exposures on expected future sales:
Forward foreign currency contracts
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Boak value Fair value
€000’s £000"s
(11,981} {11,981)
(98.350} {98,350}
{110,331} (110,331}
11,852 11,852
35,633 35,633
47,485 47,485
- (3,051)

- 1,830




. .Notes to the Accounts continued

‘18 Treasury contmued
The book values and fair values of these financial instruments as at September 30 2001 were as follows:

: Book value Eair value
Primary ﬁnanmal instruments held to finance the group s operanons. £000's £000's

Liabilities: |
Short-term borrowmgs and current portion of long-term borrowmgs (13,020) (13,020)
Long-term borrowings ] : (102,742) (102,742)
(115,762) (115,762)

Assets:

Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings 12,247 12,247
Cash at bank 30,285 30,286
42,533 42,533

Derivative financial instruments held to manage the interest rate and
currency profile of the group:
Interest rate swaps - (3,427)

Derivative financial instruments held or issued to hedge the currency
exposures on expected future sales:
Forward foreign currency contracts - 865

Hedges

As explained in the operating and financial review on pages 4 to 9 the group uses derivative financial
instruments to reduce exposure to foreign currency exchange risks. These instruments take the form of forward
exchange rate contracts to sell US dollars in exchange for sterling to meet the excess of sterling costs over
sterling revenues as well as dividends paid to shareholders.

The group also uses interest rate swaps and interest rate cap and collar derivatives to minimize interest rate
fluctuations.

On September 25 2002 the group entered into a tax equalization swap to hedge the cash effect of tax on
unrealized foreign currency gains and losses on the company’s net doilar liabilities. This was achieved by a sale
of US$14 million in exchange for sterling maturing on March 27 2003,

In the previous year the group hedged this same risk by entering into a tax equalization swap achieved by a sale
of US$11 million in exchange for sterling maturing on September 27 2002.
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Notes to the Accounts continued

18 Treasury continued

Unrecognized gains and losses on hedging instruments and the mwements therein are as follows:

Unrecognized gains and losses on hedges as at October 1 2b6f -

Gains and losses arising in previous years and recogmzed m 2002

Gains and losses arising before October 1 2001 and not mcogmzed in 2002

Gains and losses arising in 2002 that were not recognized in 2002

Unrecognized gains and losses on hedges as at September 30 2002

Of which:
Gains and losses expected to be recognized in the year to
September 30 2003

(ains and losses expected to he recognized in the year to
September 30 2004 or later

19 Provisions for liabilities and charges

Al October 1 2001

Profit and loss account

Provided in the year

Exchange differences

Fair value adjustment on prior year acquisition

Elimination of share of net liabilities in associated undertakings

At September 30 2002

Maturity profile of provisions

Within one year
Between one and two years
Between two and five years
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Gains Losses Total
£000's £000's £000's
874 (3.436)  (2,562)
{870) 1,351 481
4 {2,085) (2,081)
1,826 (966) 860
1,830 {3.051) (1,221}
1,790 {1,685%) 105
40 (1,366) (1,326}
Share of net
Onerous liabilities in
lease associated
provision undertakings Total
£000°s £000°s E000's
1,003 166 1,169
(847} - (847)
200 - 200
(24) - (24)
{205) - (205)
- (166} {1686)
127 - 127
2002 2001
E0G0's E000%s
127 840
- 294
- 35
127 1,169




20 Deferred taxation

The deferred tax asset as at September 30 comprised: -

Accelerated capital allowances
Other short-term timing differences
Unamortized US goodwill

Unutilized tax losses from US goodwili -

US goodwill offset against reserves

Undiscounted provision for deferred tax
Discount

Discounted deferred tax asset

Movement in deferred tax:
Deferred tax asset at October t

Deferred tax credit in the profit and loss account

(note 8)
Deferred tax asset at September 30

*® see note 1.

A deferred tax asset of £1,182,000 (2001: £nil) has been recognized in respect of depreciation in excess of UK
capital allowances and other short-term timing differences, The directors are of the opinion that based on recent
and forecast trading, the level of profits in future years are more likely than not to be sufficient to enable the asset

to be recovered.

A deferred tax asset of £7,800,000 has not been recognized in respect of overseas tax losses (2001: £5,500,000}
as there is insufficient certainty in current global markets to be able to say that the group will be more likely
than not to generate sufficient suitable overseas taxable profits within the immediate future.

The group is able to cbtain tax relief in the US for the cost of goodwill arising on its acquisitions of some
businesses. In certain cases the goodwill was written off to reserves under the transitional rules set out in
FRS i0 ‘Goodwill and Intangible Assets! Utilization of the available tax relief in the US gives rise to a timing
difference as set out above. The potential timing difference will only reverse on a sale of the relevant businesses.
As the relevant businesses are considered core to the group there is currently no intention to sell them. The
potential reversal is therefore so far into the future that, after discounting, the potential liability becomes
insignificant. The effect of discounting the group's other deferred tax assets and liabilities is not material,

. Notes to the Accounts continued

-.'-'-Group Company Company

i 2001 2002 2001
o - E00O's £000's £000's
. (as restated)® (as restated)®

: = 448 -
734 - 734 -
(88) (22) - -
88 S - -
(15,040) {12,117) - -
{13,858) {12,117 1182 . -
15,040 12,117 - -
1,182 - 1,182 -
£000's
1,182
1.182
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Notes to the Accounts continued

21 Called up share capital and share options
Group and Company

2002 2001
£000's £000's
Authorized share capital: :
112,000,000 ordinary shares of 0.25p each L 280 280
Allotted and fully paid share capital:
87,793,812 ordinary shares of 0.25p each
(2001: 87,791,812 ordinary shares of 0.25p each} 219 219

During the year, 2,000 ordinary shares of 0.25p each (2001: 64,000 ordinary shares) with an aggregate rtominal
value of £5 (2001: £160) were issued for a cash consideration of £4,240 {2001: £161,000) following the exercise
of share options granted under the company’s share option schemes.

Share options
The following options are outstanding at September 30 and are options to subscribe for new ordinary shares of
0.25p each in the company:

Number of ordinary shares under option

Period during which opton may be exercised: Opton price

2002 2001 £
Before December 5 2001 - 2,000 1.28
Before December 8 2002 3,000 5,000 2.12
Before November 29 2003 35,000 35,000 3.52
Before December 8 2004 32,000 32,000 4.05
Before June 19 2005 570,968 570,968 3.54
Before February 8 2006 29,784 29,784 3.33
Before February 8 2003 ' 154,216 202,216 3.33
Before February 7 2007 46,404 62,404 3.55
Before February 24 2004 102,596 118,556 3.58
Before January 7 2008 86,228 86,228 3.96
Before January 7 2005 197,772 37,772 3.96
Before January 29 2009 300,000 322,000 4,19
Before February 11 2009 160,000 160,000 3.96
Before June 25 2009 540,000 540,000 4.31
Between January 5 2003 and January 4 2010 226,000 252,000 5.63
Between March 2 2004 and March 1 2011 349,000 366,000 5.38
Between January 23 2005 and Januvary 22 2012 238,000 - 3.35

3.070,968 3,021,968
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Notes to the Accounts continied

FL

22 Statement of movement on reserves

" Group
At October 1 2001
Retained profit for the year
Reinstatement of goodwill on closed businesses

Exchange differences arising on translation of net
investments in overseas subsidiary undertakings
Net exchange difference on foreign currency loans

Tax on foreign exchange translation differences
Exercise of share options

At September 30 2002

Profit and
loss
account Total
£000°s £000's
3,739 8 (126,884) (93,137)
RRREN - 10,536 10,536
- - 512 512
- - 4,332 4,332
- - 2,469 ~ 2,469
- - . (740) {740)
4 - - 4
33,743 8 (109,775} (76.024)

As permitted under the provisions of FR$ 10 ‘Goodwil! and Intangible Assets’, goodwill arising on consolidation
previously written off to reserves has been set off against the profit and loss account, The cumulative amount of
goodwill written off to reserves at September 30 2002 was £156,462,000 (2001 £156,974,000).

Share Capitat Profit and

premium redemption Capital loss
[eccount reserve reserve account Total
£000's £000s £000's E000's £000"s

Company

At October 1 2001 33,739 8 1,842 6,291 41,880
Retained profit for the year - - - 9,054 9,054
Exercise of share options 4 - - - 4
At Septernber 30 2002 33,743 8 1,842 15,345 50,938

23 Commitments
Acquisitions

The group has contingent commitments under put options given to various parties under acquisition agreements
estimated at an aggregate £1,401,000 at September 30 2002 {2001: £2,300,000).

Operating leases

Annual commitments under operating leases for land and buildings at September 30 2002 were as follows:

Operating leases which expire:
Within one year

Between two and five years
Over five years

Group Group Cowpany Company
2002 2001 2002 2001
£000°s £000's £000"s E000's
619 1,830 - 9
873 3,403 . 100 409
2,463 313 283 268
3,955 5,546 383 686
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24 Contingent liabilities and assets
Claims in Malaysia E T D A R -
Four writs claiming damages for libel were issued in Novéinb:; 1995 in Malaysia against the company and three
of its employees in respect of an article published in one of the company’s iagazines, fnternational Commercial
Litigation. The writs were served on the company on October 22 '1996, The total amount. claimed is
280 million Malaysian ringgits (£50 million). No provision has been made in these financial statements as
the directors do not believe the company has any material liability in respect of these writs.

Claims in England and Wales : :

In August 2002, the company successfully settled the £4 million claim related to the article published in
International Commercial Litigation brought in England against the company and three of its employees seeking
100% contribution towards damages and legal costs incurred in Malaysia by sources quated in the article. The
total cost to the company, including legal fees, was £85,000. ‘

25 Related party transactions
() The operating lease charge includes property rental payments amounting to £107,000 (2001: £110,000} made
to the president of MIS Training, Inc. a subsidiary undertaking.

(i) The group has a loan facility from Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited and the same loan facility to
Associated Newspapers North America, Inc. During the year US$9.0 million was repaid and the same amount
drawn down on 26 September 2002. The amount owing at September 30 2002 amounts to US$18.6 million
{E11.9 million) which includes interest payable. Each balance is repayable within one month of demand and
bears interest at US prime rate,

(iif) The group expensed £272,000 (2001: £215,000} for services ;irovided by Daily Mail and General Trust plc
including costs associated with the bi-lateral facility and arrangement fee (note 18).

(iv) On September 28 2001 the group entered into a US$15.0 million fixed rate interest rate swap at 5.38% with
Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited. The termination date is March 29 2006, During the year the group
paid US$449,000 (£303,000) of interest to Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited in respect of this swap.

{v] The group agreed on September 25 2002 to sell US$14.0 million for sterling to the Daily Mail and General
Trust ple on March 27 2003 at an exchange rate of 1.5595.

26 Ultimate parent undertaking

The directors regard the ultimate parent undertaking as Rothermere Continuation Limited, which is incorporated
in Bermuda. The uitimate controlling party is The Viscount Rothermere, The largest and smallest group of which
the company is a member and for which group accounts are drawn up is that of Daily Mait and General Trust plc,
incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales. Copies of the report and accounts are available
from:

The Company Secretary

Daily Mail and General Trust plc
Northcliffe House, 2 Derry Street
London W8 5TT
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Group profit and loss extracts

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
£000's £000's £000's £000's £004's
Turnover 176,930 168,423 192,122 204,783 179,734
Operating profit before goodwill
amortization 35,212 28,433 32,541 28,118 29,064
Goodwill amortization - (3,446) (5,500} {5,949] (6,125)
Operating profit 35,212 24,987 27,041 22,169 22,939
Share of operating profit in associates 585 416 165 169 413
Exceptional items on disposal/closure
of businesses - 893 179 (3,250} 1,513
Net interest payabie (3,712} {3,727 (4,782) (5,417) {4,239)
Profit on ordinary activities before tax 32,085 22,569 22,603 13,67 20,646
Tax on profit on ordinary activities {8,342} (7,184] (7,218 (5,025) 2,793
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 23,743 15,385 15,385 8,646 23,439
Equity minority interests {1,194) {322) {1,100} {217) 38
Profit for the financial year 22,549 15,063 14,285 8,429 23.477
Dividends paid and proposed {11,899) (11,934) {12,930} (12,939) (12,941)
Retained profit/(loss) for the financial year 10,650 3,129 1,355 {4,510} 10,536
Basic earnings per share 26.13p 17.37p 16.35p 9.61p 26.76p
Diluted eamings per share 26.01p 17.32p 16.16p 3.6ip 26.76p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share before
goodwill amortization and exceptional items 26.01p 20.25p 22.18p 20.10p 24.29p
Diluted weighted average number of
ordinary shares {number} 86,686,980 86,978,068 88,402,637 87,702,074 87,735,087
Dividend per share 13.75p 13.75p 14.75p 14.75p 14.75p
Group balance sheet extracts
Intangible fixed assets - 21,958 25,799 31,049 24,685
Tangible fixed assets 9,293 9,656 8.129 7,442 10,088
Net current assets/{liabilities) 2,784 (3.890) 19,526 11,769 20.028
Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year {60.609) (73,816) (101,816} (102,742) (98,350)
Provisions for liabilities and charges (4,539) (3,628) {2.512) (1,169) (127)
Deferred income (30,785} (32,760) (38.123) (38,920) (31,946)
Net liabilities (83,856} (82,480) {88,997} (92.571) (75,622}
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